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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT 

 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Info-Tek Corporation 
 
 
Introduction 
 
We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Info-Tek Corporation (the Company) 
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, the related consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 and for the six 
months then ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the consolidated statements of changes in equity and cash 
flows for the six months then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies “(collectively referred to as the “consolidated 
financial statements”)”. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial 
Reporting” endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of 
China. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the consolidated financial statements based on our 
reviews. 
 
Scope of Review 
 
We conducted our reviews in accordance with Standards on Review Engagements of the Republic of 
China 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. 
A review of consolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible 
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we 
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Based on our reviews, nothing has come to our attention that caused us to believe that the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of the Company as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, its consolidated financial performance for the  
three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 in accordance with the 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International 
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial 
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 
 
The engagement partners on the reviews resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Chun-Ming 
Hsueh and Szu-Lan Chu. 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan 
Republic of China 
 
August 6, 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Notice to Readers 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and 
practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The 
standards, procedures and practices to review such consolidated financial statements are those generally 
applied in the Republic of China. 
 
For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ review report and the accompanying 
consolidated financial statement have been translated into English from the orginal Chinese version 
prepared and used in the Republic of China. IF there is any conflict between the English version and the 
original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language 
independent auditors’ review report and consolidated financial statements shall prevail. 
 



INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)                                                                                      

   June 30, 2025  December 31, 2024  June 30, 2024 
 ASSETS  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 
 CURRENT ASSETS             
 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)    $ 260,752     4    $ 244,572     3    $ 555,234     9 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 7 and 28)     4,134     -     278     -     104     - 
 Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 

Income - current (Notes 8 and 28) 
 

   544,752     8     586,633     7     485,237     7 
 Financial Assets at amortized cost - current (Note 9)     81,820     1     89,560     1     88,900     1 
 Notes receivable (Notes 10、18 and 30)     1,512,652     22     1,422,738     17     939,516     14 
 Trade receivables (Note 10)     1,853,242     27     3,158,987     39     1,999,512     31 
 Trade receivables from related parties (Note 29)     22,569     -     45,993     1     32,449     1 
 Other receivables (Note 10)     28,810     -     17,985     -     11,205     - 
 Other receivables from related parties (Note 29)     201     -     158     -     -     - 
 Inventories (Note 11)     653,912     10     936,330     12     699,911     11 
 Other current assets (Notes 6 and 17)     330,919     5     191,000     2     267,564     4 
 Total current assets     5,293,763     77     6,694,234     82     5,079,632     78 
                                
 NON-CURRENT ASSETS             
 Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 

Income – non-current (Notes 8 and 28) 
 

   231,396     3     114,703     1     83,350     1 
 Investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 13)     2,100     -     2,255     -     2,340     - 
 Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)     998,337     15     1,099,758     14     1,061,541     16 
 Right-of-use assets (Notes 15 and 29)     147,306     2     70,050     1     92,129     2 
 Intangible assets (Note 16)     15,834     -     14,186     -     17,219     - 
 Deferred tax assets     61,377     1     46,222     1     38,651     1 
 Refundable deposits     2,912     -     3,355     -     2,747     - 
 Other non-current assets (Note 17)     155,737     2     100,109     1     157,220     2 
 Total non-current assets     1,614,999     23     1,450,638     18     1,455,197     22 
                                
 TOTAL ASSETS    $ 6,908,762     100    $ 8,144,872     100    $ 6,534,829     100 
              
 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY             
 CURRENT LIABILITIES             
 Short-term borrowings (Note 18)    $ 913,640     13    $ 661,950     8    $ 468,900     7 
 Notes payable (Note 19 )     674,573     10     484,212     6     555,939     9 
 Trade payables (Note 19 )     1,195,946     17     2,469,698     30     1,018,867     16 
 Trade payables to related parties (Note 29 )     8,714     -     15,932     -     14,413     - 
 Other payables (Note 20 )     540,983     8     438,911     6     650,583     10 
 Other payables to related parties (Note 29 )     1,897     -     4,676     -     5,601     - 
 Current tax liabilities     29,724     -     20,398     -     56,246     1 
 Lease liabilities – current (Notes 15 and 29 )     62,787     1     30,622     1     49,590     1 
 Current portion of long-term borrowings (Note 18)     -     -     89,560     1     88,900     1 
 Other current liabilities (Note 20)     193,683     3     243,667     3     199,807     3 
 Total current liabilities     3,621,947     52     4,459,626     55     3,108,846     48 
                                
 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES             
 Deferred tax liabilities     31,220     1     93,045     1     94,238     2 
 Lease liabilities –non- current (Notes 15 and 29)     56,648     1     4,644     -     8,801     - 
 Net defined benefit liabilities     1,597     -     5,503     -     7,010     - 
 Guarantee deposits received     23,171     -     26,672     1     28,208     - 
 Other liabilities     12,273     -     13,434     -     -     - 
 Total non-current liabilities     124,909     2     143,298     2     138,257     2 
                                
   Total liabilities     3,746,856     54     4,602,924     57     3,247,103     50 
                                
 Share capital     1,212,511     18     1,212,511     15     1,212,511     19 
                                
 Capital surplus             
 Additional paid-in capital     179,924     2     179,924     2     179,924     3 
 Treasury share transactions     44,199     1     44,199     1     44,199     - 
 Employee stock option     7,646     -     7,646     -     7,646     - 
 Other capital reserve     85     -     85     -     85     - 
 Total capital surplus     231,854     3     231,854     3     231,854     3 
                                
 Retained earnings             
 Legal reserve     291,866     4     252,512     3     252,512     4 
 Special reserve     106,006     2     106,006     1     106,006     2 
 Unappropriated earnings     1,595,132     23     1,795,255     22     1,536,699     23 
 Total retained earnings     1,993,004     29     2,153,773     26     1,895,217     29 
                                
 Other equity   (  241,358 )  (  3 )   (  22,085 )    -   (  17,751 )    - 
                                
 Treasury shares   (  34,105 )  (  1 )   (  34,105 )  (  1 )   (  34,105 )  (  1 ) 
                                
 Total equity     3,161,906     46     3,541,948     43     3,287,726     50 
                                
 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    $ 6,908,762     100    $ 8,144,872     100    $ 6,534,829     100 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 



INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)                         
   For the Three Months Ended June 30  For the Six Months Ended June 30 
   2025  2024  2025  2024 
   Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 
 OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 23 

and 29) 
 

  $ 1,627,081     100    $ 1,559,978     100    $ 3,275,665     100    $ 2,869,531     100 
                                          
 COST OF GOODS SOLD (Notes 11, 

24 and 29) 
 

   1,419,553     87     1,308,195     84     2,912,873     89     2,423,570     84 
                                          
 GROSS PROFIT     207,528     13     251,783     16     362,792     11     445,961     16 
                                          
 OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 24 

and 29) 
 

               
 Selling and marketing expenses     16,556     1     14,607     1     29,314     1     30,560     1 
 General and administrative     

    expenses 
 

   46,279     3     54,554     3     92,914     3     101,663     4 
 Research and development  

    expenses 
 

   62,521     4     49,990     3     126,310     4     106,306     4 
 Expected credit loss (reversal 

gain) (Note 10) 
 

   2,217     -   (  3,061 )     -     41,258     1     4,360     - 
 Total operating expenses     127,573     8     116,090     7     289,796     9     242,889     9 
                                          
 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS     79,955     5     135,693     9     72,996     2     203,072     7 
                                          
 NON-OPERATING INCOME AND 

EXPENSES(Notes 24 and 29 ) 
 

               
 Interest income     8,911     1     7,458     -     18,337     1     11,978     - 
 Other income     19,696     1     8,955     1     31,682     1     22,587     1 
 Other gains and losses   (  98,998 )   (  6 )     11,453     1   (  84,473 )   (  2 )     24,058     1 
 associates accounted for using  

     the equity method 
 

 (  101 )     -   (  62 )     -   (  155 )     -   (  107 )     - 
 Finance costs   (  10,140 )   (  1 )   (  11,938 )   (  1 )   (  22,545 )   (  1 )   (  24,456 )   (  1 ) 
 Total non-operating income 

       and expenses 
 

 (  80,632 )   (  5 )     15,866     1   (  57,154 )   (  1 )     34,060     1 
                                          
 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 

FROM CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS 

 

 (  677 )     -     151,559     10     15,842     1     237,132     8 
                                          
 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 25)     18,449     1     71,376     5     19,635     1     102,143     3 
                                          
 NET PROFIT (LOSS)   (  19,126 )   (  1 )     80,183     5   (  3,793 )     -     134,989     5 
                                          
 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME (LOSS) 
 

               
 Items that will not be 

reclassified   
subsequently to profit or loss: 

 

               
 Unrealized loss on 

      investments in quity  
      instruments at fair value  
      through other comprehensive 
      income 

 

 (  8,797 )   (  1 )     547     -   (  17,473 )   (  1 )   (  3,540 )     - 
 Items that may be reclassified  

subsequently to profit or loss: 
 

               
 Exchange differences on  

      translating the financial  
      statements of foreign    
      operations 

 

 (  250,749 )   (  15 )     16,430     1   (  201,800 )   (  6 )     58,450     2 
 Other comprehensive  

income, net of income tax 
 

 (  259,546 )   (  16 )     16,977     1   (  219,273 )   (  7 )     54,910     2 
                                          
 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME 
 

 ( $ 278,672 )   (  17 )    $ 97,160     6   ( $ 223,066 )   (  7 )    $ 189,899     7 
                                          
 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 26)                 
 Basic   ( $ 0.16 )      $ 0.67     ( $ 0.03 )      $ 1.12   
 Diluted   ( $ 0.16 )      $ 0.66     ( $ 0.03 )      $ 1.11   
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 



INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)                                                                                                                                                

             Other equity(Note 22)     
             

Exchange 
Differences on 
Translating the 

Financial 
Statements of 

 Unrealized 
gain(loss) on 

financial assets 
measured at fair  

value through 
other 

 

Remeasurement 

    

   Share Capital  Capital Surplus  Retained Earnings        

   (Note 22)  (Note 22)  Legal Reserve  Special Reserve  
Unappropriated 

Earnings  
Foreign 

Operations  
comprehensive 

income  
of defined benefit 

obligation  Treasury shares  Total Equity 
 BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2024    $ 1,212,511    $ 231,854    $ 198,196    $ 106,006    $ 1,673,378   ( $ 117,258 )    $ 37,165    $ 7,432   ( $ 34,105 )    $ 3,315,179 
                                                    
 Appropriation of 2023 earnings                     
 Legal reserve     -     -     54,316     -   (  54,316 )     -     -     -     -     - 
 Cash dividends distributed by the 

Company 
 

   -     -     -     -   (  217,352 )     -     -     -     -   (  217,352 ) 
                                                    
 Net profit for the six-month period ended 

June 30, 2024 
 

   -     -     -     -     134,989     -     -     -     -     134,989 
                                                    
 Other comprehensive income (loss) for 

the six-month period ended June 30, 
2024 

 

   -     -     -     -     -     58,450   (  3,540 )     -     -     54,910 
                                                    
 Total comprehensive income (loss) for the 

six-month period ended June 30, 2024 
 

   -     -     -     -     134,989     58,450   (  3,540 )     -     -     189,899 
                                                    
 BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2024    $ 1,212,511    $ 231,854    $ 252,512    $ 106,006    $ 1,536,699   ( $ 58,808 )    $ 33,625    $ 7,432   ( $ 34,105 )    $ 3,287,726 
                                                    
 BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2025    $ 1,212,511    $ 231,854    $ 252,512    $ 106,006    $ 1,795,255   ( $ 45,008 )    $ 14,360    $ 8,563   ( $ 34,105 )    $ 3,541,948 
                                                    
 Appropriation of 2024 earnings                     
 Legal reserve     -     -     39,354     -   (  39,354 )     -     -     -     -     - 
 Cash dividends distributed by the 

Company 
 

   -     -     -     -   (  156,976 )     -     -     -     -   (  156,976 ) 
                                                    
 Net profit for the six-month period ended 

June 30, 2025 
 

   -     -     -     -   (  3,793 )     -     -     -     -   (  3,793 ) 
                                                    
 Other comprehensive income (loss) for 

the six-month period ended June 30, 
2025 

 

   -     -     -     -     -   (  201,800 )   (  17,473 )     -     -   (  219,273 ) 
                                                    
 Total comprehensive income (loss) for the 

six-month period ended June 30, 2025 
 

   -     -     -     -   (  3,793 )   (  201,800 )   (  17,473 )     -     -   (  223,066 ) 
                                                    
 BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2025    $ 1,212,511    $ 231,854    $ 291,866    $ 106,006    $ 1,595,132   ( $ 246,808 )   ( $ 3,113 )    $ 8,563   ( $ 34,105 )    $ 3,161,906 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an in tegral  part  of  the consol idated f inanc ia l  s tatements.  
 



INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)                                              

   
For the Six-Month Period 

 Ended June 30 
   2025  2024 
 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
 Income before income tax from continuing operations    $ 15,842    $ 237,132 
 Adjustments for:     
 Depreciation expense     145,766     137,500 
 Amortization expense     1,822     1,290 
 Expected credit loss of trade receivables     41,258     4,360 
 Net gain from changes of financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss   (  49 )   (  39 ) 
 Interest expense     22,545     24,456 
 Interest income   (  18,337 )   (  11,978 ) 
 Dividends income   (  12,464 )     - 
 Share of profit of associates     155     107 
 Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment   (  315 )     706 
 (Reversed) Write-downs of inventories     45,523   (  10,749 ) 
 Net loss on foreign currency exchange     8,599     526 
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities     
 Notes receivable   (  102,670 )     57,777 
 Trade receivables     1,256,672     473,830 
 Trade receivables from related parties     21,888   (  12,646 ) 
 Other receivables     100     8,294 
 Other receivables from related parties   (  43 )     76 
 Inventories     229,210     83,213 
 Other current assets   (  139,885 )   (  78,765 ) 
 Non-current assets     3,760     9,112 
 Notes payable     190,361     91,792 
 Trade payables   (  1,269,265 )   (  239,346 ) 
 Trade payables to related parties   (  6,821 )     5,107 
 Other payables   (  53,935 )   (  43,575 ) 
 Other payables to related parties   (  2,779 )   (  486 ) 
 Other current liabilities   (  49,982 )     6,046 
 Net defined benefit liabilities   (  3,906 )   (  2,632 ) 
 Non-current liabilities   (  1,161 )   (  12,428 ) 
 Cash generated from operations     321,889     728,680 
 Interest paid   (  9,107 )   (  5,239 ) 
 Income tax paid   (  38,553 )   (  107,447 ) 
 Net cash generated from operating      

activities     274,229     615,994 
 
 
                              (Cont inued)



INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)                                              

   
For the Six-Month Period 

 Ended June 30 
   2025  2024 
 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
 Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other     

   comprehensive income   ( $ 176,087 )   ( $ 358,991 ) 
 Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss   (  5,172 )   (  599 ) 
 Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost     7,740     15,497 
 Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value       

through other comprehensive income     24,327     - 
 Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value       

through profit or loss     859     1,952 
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment   (  162,048 )   (  104,629 ) 
 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment     1,237     - 
 Increase in refundable deposits     -   (  4 ) 
 Decrease in refundable deposits     443     - 
 Payments for intangible assets   (  2,260 )   (  5,799 ) 
 Interest received     19,876     6,407 
 Net cash used in investing activities   (  291,085 )   (  446,166 ) 
            
 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
 Increase in short-term borrowings     251,690     168,900 
 Proceeds from long-term borrowings     -     2,485 
 Repayments of long-term borrowings   (  89,560 )     - 
 Decrease in guarantee deposits received   (  3,501 )   (  1,322 ) 
 Repayment of the principal of lease liabilities   (  23,855 )   (  25,779 ) 
 Net cash flows used in financing activities     134,774     144,284 
            
 EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE 

BALANCE OF CASH HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES   (  101,738 )     29,318 
            
 NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     16,180     343,430 
            
 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 

PERIOD     244,572     211,804 
            
 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 

PERIOD    $ 260,752    $ 555,234 
 

The accompanying notes are an in tegral  part  of  the consol idated f inancia l  s tatements.  
 



INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD JUNE 30,2025 AND 2024 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)                                       
1.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Info-Tek Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Republic of China (ROC) in 
December,1990. The Company started its business in April 1991 and is mainly engaged in the 
manufacture, assembly and processing, sales and distribution of information electronic products. 

 
The company's shares were officially traded on the Taipei Exchange in March 2005. 

 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in the Company’s functional currency, the 
New Taiwan dollars. 

 
2.  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Company’s board of directors on 
August 6, 2025. 

 
3.  APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDARDS AND 

INTERPRETATIONS 
 

(1)  Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 
Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC 
Interpretations (SIC) (collectively, “IFRSs”) did not have a significant effect on the company 
accounting policies. 

 
A. Amendments to IAS 21 – “Lack of Exchangeability” 

The application of the amendments to IAS 21 – “Lack of Exchangeability” will not result in 
significant changes to the accounting policies of the consolidated group. 
The application of the amended IFRS accounting standards, as approved and announced 
effective by the FSC, will not result in significant changes to the accounting policies of the 
consolidated group. 
 

 (2)  The IFRSs endorsed by the FSC for application starting from 2026 

 

New IFRSs  
Effective Date 

Issued by IASB 
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 – 'Amendments to the 

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments' 
 January 1, 2026 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 –''Contracts Involving 
Nature-Dependent Electricity. '' 

 January 1, 2026 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards – 
Volume 11 

 January 1, 2026 

IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"  January 1, 2023  
Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17 'Initial Application of IFRS 9 and 
IFRS 17 -Comparative Information" 

 January 1, 2023 

 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 –  Class i f icat ion and Measurement of  
Financia l  Instruments  
 
A.  Amendments  to the appl ica t ion guidance on the c lass i f icat ion of  f inanc ial  

assets  



The amendments pr imar i l y modif y the requ irements for  the c lass if icat ion 
of  f inanc ial  assets ,  inc luding:  
(a)  W here a f inanc ia l asset contains a cont ingent  feature that  may change 
the t im ing or amount of  contractual cash f lows, and the nature of  such 
cont ingent  feature is not d irect ly re lated to changes in bas ic lending r isks 
and costs  (e.g. ,  whether  the debtor  achieves a  spec if ied reduct ion in 
carbon emiss ions) ,  the contractual  cash f lows of  such f inanc ia l  asset 
sha l l  s t i l l  be cons idered solely payments  of  pr inc ipa l  and interest  on the 
outs tand ing pr inc ipal amount i f  the fo l lowing condit ions are met:  
・  In a l l  poss ib le scenar ios (before and after  the cont ingent  feature 
occurs) ,  the contractual cash f lows are sole ly payments of  pr inc ipa l and 
interest on the outs tanding pr inc ipal  amount;  and 
・  In a l l  poss ib le scenar ios, the cont ractual  cash f lows are not  
s ignif icant ly d ifferent f rom the cash f lows o f  a f inanc ial  ins trument with 
the same contractual  terms but wi thout  such cont ingent feature.  

(b)  I t  is  c lar i f ied that  a non-recourse f inanc ia l asset refers to one in which 
the ent i t y’s ul t imate contractual r ight to receive cash f lows is  
contractua l ly l im ited to the cash f lows generated by specif ied assets .  

(c) I t  is  further c lar i f ied that  contractual  l inkage instruments ar ise where a 
waterfal l  payment s tructure creates  different  tranches of  secur it ies  wi th 
varying payment  pr ior i t ies , thereby concentrat ing credi t  r isk  and causing 
shor tfa l ls  in cash f lows f rom the underlying pool to be dist r ibuted 
dispropor t ionate ly among tranches.  

B.Amendments to the appl icat ion guidance on derecognit ion of  f inanc ia l  
l iabi l i t ies  
The amendments c lar i f y that  a f inanc ial  l iabi l i t y should be derecognized 
on the set t lement date.  However,  when an ent i ty ex t inguishes  a f inanc ial  
l iabi l i t y by making payment through an electronic  payment  system, i t  may 
choose to derecognize the l iabi l i ty before the set t lement date i f  the 
fol lowing condit ions are met:  
・  The ent i ty does not  have the pract ica l  ab i l i t y to withdraw,  stop, or  
cancel the payment instruct ion;  
・  The ent i t y does not have the prac t ical  abi l i t y to  access the cash that  
wi l l  be used for  sett lement as a resul t  of  the payment ins truct ion;  and 
・  The sett lement r isks associated wi th the e lectron ic  payment  system 
are not s ignif icant.  

The amendments are to be appl ied retrospect ive ly;  however, 
restatement of  comparat ive per iods is not requ ired, and the cumulat ive 
effect  of  ini t ia l  appl icat ion shal l  be recognized a t the date of  in it ia l  
app l icat ion.  I f  restatement of  comparat ives is  poss ible  without  the use 
of  h indsight ,  the ent i t y may elect  to resta te comparat ive per iods.  
 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 – Contracts  Involv ing Weather-dependent  
Power  

Contracts  involv ing weather-dependent  power refer  to arrangements in 
which e lectr ic i t y generat ion depends on natural factors  beyond contro l ,  
resul t ing in exposure of  one par ty to r isks of  actua l generat ion output  
being uncer ta in. These inc lude contracts for  the purchase or  sa le of 
weather-dependent power or  f inanc ia l  ins truments re lated to  such 
power. The amendments provide that where the Group enters in to a 
contract to purchase weather-dependent power and is exposed to the 
r isk  that  the contracted quant i t y in a g iven per iod exceeds i ts own 
demand, and the market  des ign and operat ion require the Group to sel l  
unused elec tr ic i t y wi th in a  prescr ibed t imeframe, such sa les do not  
necessar i l y prec lude the Group f rom meet ing the condit ion that  the 
contract is  held for  the purpose of  meet ing expec ted e lectr ic i t y usage 
needs,  and therefore f rom account ing for  the contract  o ther  than as a 
f inanc ia l  instrument.  I f  the Group repurchases an equ ivalent  amount of  
e lectr ic i t y in  the same market  with in  a reasonable per iod after  the sale , 



the condit ion that  the contrac t  is  held to meet expected usage needs 
cont inues to be met.  
The amendments a lso provide that  where the Group enters  into a 
contract  involv ing weather-dependent power and des ignates i t  as a 
hedging instrument for  forecast  t ransact ions,  the Group may des ignate 
forecast  e lec tr ic i t y t ransac t ions in volumes consis tent wi th those under  
the contract  as the hedged i tem. 
The Group shal l  apply retrospec t ively the amendments  re lat ing to the 
assessment of  whether  contracts  involv ing weather-dependent power 
are  he ld to meet expec ted usage needs.  However,  restatement  of  
comparat ive per iods  is  not  required,  and the cumulat ive  effect  of  in it ia l 
app l icat ion shal l  be recognized at  the date of  in i t ia l  appl ica t ion.  The 
provis ions re lat ing to hedge account ing sha l l  be appl ied on a deferred 
bas is .  
As of  the date the consolidated f inancia l  statements were author ized for 
issue,  the Group is  st i l l  assess ing the potent ial  impacts  of  these 
amendments on i ts  f inanc ial  pos i t ion and f inanc ia l  per formance. The 
re lated impacts  wi l l  be d isc losed upon complet ion of  the assessment .  

   
 (3)  New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC 

New IFRSs  
Effective Date 

Issued by IASB(Note 1) 
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 ''Sale or Contribution 

of Assets between An Investor and Its Associate or 
Joint Venture" 

 To be determined by IASB 

IFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial 
Statements” 

 January 1, 2027 

IFRS 19: 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: 
Disclosures.' 

 January 1, 2027 

 
Note 1:  Unless stated otherwise, the above New IFRSs are effective for annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after their respective effective dates.  
 

a.  Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — "Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture" 

 
  The amendments stipulate that when the Group sells or contributes assets to an 

associate or a joint venture, or when the Group loses control over a subsidiary but 
retains significant influence or joint control over the investee, and the transferred assets 
or former subsidiary meet the definition of a "business" under IFRS 3 Business 
Combinations, the Group shall recognize in full the gain or loss arising from such 
transactions. 

 
Furthermore, when the Group sells or contributes assets to an associate or a joint 
venture, or loses control of a subsidiary in a transaction with an associate or joint 
venture but retains significant influence or joint control over the investee, and the 
transferred assets or former subsidiary do not meet the definition of a "business" under 
IFRS 3, the Group shall recognize the gain or loss arising from the transaction only to 
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. That is, 
the portion of the gain or loss attributable to the Group’s own interest shall be 
eliminated. 

 
 b .  IFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements” 

IFRS 18 will replace IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements." The main changes 
in the standard include: 

 The income statement should categorize income and expenses into operating, 
investing, financing, income tax, and discontinued operations. 

 The income statement should report subtotals and totals for operating profit or loss, 
profit or loss before financing and income tax, and profit or loss. 



 Providing guidance to enhance aggregation and disaggregation requirements: the 
Group must identify assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows from 
individual transactions or other events and classify and aggregate them based on 
shared characteristics. This ensures that each line item reported in the primary 
financial statements has at least one similar characteristic. Items with differing 
characteristics should be disaggregated in the primary financial statements and 
notes. The Group should only label such items as "other" when a more informative 
name cannot be found. 

        Increasing disclosure of management-defined performance measures: When 
the Group communicate publicly outside the financial statements or discuss 
management's view of a specific aspect of the company's overall financial performance 
with users of the financial statements, they should disclose information about 
management-defined performance measures in a single note to the financial 
statements. This includes a description of the measure, how it is calculated, a 
reconciliation to the nearest subtotal or total specified by IFRS accounting standards, 
and the impact of related reconciling items on income tax and non-controlling interests. 
 

Except for the above impact, as of the date the consolidated financial statements were 
authorized for issue, the Group is continuously assessing the possible impact of the 
application of other standards and interpretations on the Group’s financial position and 
financial performance and will disclose the relevant impact when the assessment is 
completed. 

 
 
4.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
 (1)  Statement of  compl iance 
 

This  inter im conso l idated f inanc ia l  s tatements  have been prepared in  
accordance wi th the Regulat ions Govern ing the Preparat ion of  Financia l  
Reports  by Secur it ies  Issuers and IAS 34 “ Inter im Financ ial  Report ing” as  
endorsed and issued into effect  by the FSC. Disc losure informat ion inc luded 
in these inter im conso l idated f inanc ia l  statements is  less than the disclosure 
informat ion required in a complete set  of  annual  consol idated f inanc ial  
statements.  
 

(2)  Basis  of  preparat ion 
 

The consol idated f inanc ia l s ta tements have been prepared on the histor ical  
cost  bas is  except  for f inanc ial  ins truments that  are measured and net  def ined 
benef i t  l iabi l i t ies which are measured a t the present  va lue of  the def ined 
benef i t  obl igat ion less the fa ir  value of  p lan assets .  
 
The fa ir  value is grouped into  Leve ls  1 to 3  based on the measurable  and 
observable  degree of  i ts  input :  
 

a.  Level  1:  Quoted pr ices (unadjus ted)  in ac t ive markets for  identical 
assets or l iabi l i t ies .  
 

b.  Level  2:  Other  than those quoted pr ices of  Level 1, the input  of  fa ir  
va lue at  level  2 is  f rom a pr ice of  assets  or  l iabi l i t ies  which can be 
observed d irec t ly or  der ived indirect ly.  

 
 c.  Level  3:  The input  of  fa ir  value at  level 3 is  unobservable f rom assets or  

l iabi l i t ies.  
 

 (3)  Basis  of  consolidat ion 
 

The consol idated f inanc ial  s tatements incorporate the f inanc ia l  s tatements of  
the Company and the ent i t ies contro l led by the Company ( i ts  subs id iar ies).  



Income and expenses of  subs idiar ies acquired or  d isposed of  dur ing the  
per iod are  inc luded in  the consol idated statement of  comprehensive income 
f rom the effect ive  dates of  acquis it ions  up to the effect ive dates of  d isposals,  
as appropr iate.  W hen necessary,  adjustments  are made to the f inanc ial  
statements of  subs id iar ies to br ing their  accounting po l ic ies into l ine wi th  
those used by the Company.  Al l  in tra-group t ransact ions,  balances, income 
and expenses are el iminated in fu l l  upon conso lidat ion.  Total  comprehensive 
income of  subs idiar ies is  at tr ibuted to the owners  of  the Company and to the 
non-contro l l ing interests even i f  the comprehens ive income of  the 
non-contro l l ing interests  hav ing a def ic i t  balance.  
 
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests  in subsid iar ies that  do not resul t  
in the Group los ing contro l  over the subs id iar ies are accounted for as equit y 
transact ions.  The carrying amounts  of  the interests  of  the Group and the 
non-contro l l ing interests are adjusted to ref lect  the changes in their  re lat ive  
interests  in  the subs idiar ies.  Any di fference between the amount  by which the  
non-contro l l ing in terests are adjusted and the fa ir  value of  the considerat ion 
paid or  received is  recognized d irec t ly in equity and at tr ibuted to  the owners  
of  the Company.  
 
See Note 12 and a ttached Tables  3 for  detai led informat ion on subs id iar ies 
( including percentages of  ownership  and main businesses).  

 
(4)   Other  s ign if icant  accounting pol ic ies 

 
Except  for  the fol lowing descr ipt ion,  p lease refer  to  the consol idated 
f inanc ia l  s tatements for the year  ended December 31,  2024 for  other  
s ignif icant  account ing po l ic ies.  
 
Ret irement benef i ts  
 
The pension cost  for  the in ter im per iod is  based on the pension cost  rate  
determined by actuar ia l calculat ion a t the end of  the previous year,  calcu lated 
on the bas is f rom the beginning of  the year to the end of  the current  per iod, 
and for  major market f luctuat ions in the current per iod,  as wel l  as major  p lan 
revis ions,  l iquidat ions or other major  One-t ime i tems are adjusted.  
 
Taxat ion 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of  the current tax expenses and 
deferred tax.  The income taxes of  an inter im per iod are assessed us ing a tax  
rate,  which is  appl icab le for  the Company’s  annual earnings,  appl ied to the 
Company’s  pre- tax income of  the in ter im per iod.  
 

 
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND 

UNCERTAINTY 
 

In  the appl icat ion of  the Group’s  account ing pol ic ies,  management  is  required to 
make judgments,  est imates and assumpt ions on the carrying amounts  of  assets  
and l iabi l i t ies  that  are not  readi ly apparent f rom other  sources.  The est imates and  
associated assumpt ions are based on his tor ical exper ience and other  factors  that  
are  considered re levant .  Ac tua l  resu lts  may dif fer  f rom these es t imates.  
 
When developing signif icant  account ing est imates,  consolidated companies wi l l  
cons ider  potent ia l  impacts  on est imates related to  cash f low project ions,  growth 
rates,  d iscount rates, prof i tabi l i t y,  and other  re levant s igni f icant  est imates.  
Management wi l l  cont inual ly rev iew these est imates  and the under lying 
assumpt ions.  

 



 
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Cash on hand    $ 201    $ 205    $ 204 
Checking accounts and demand 
deposits     250,589     219,446     532,314 
Cash equivalents       
Time deposits     9,962     24,921     22,716 
    $ 260,752    $ 244,572    $ 555,234 
 

The interest  rate ranges for  bank  depos its  as of  the balance sheet date were as  
fol lows：  

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Time deposits  4.5%  3.90%～4.72%  5.48%～5.5% 
 

Some of  the deposits were transferred to "Other current  assets"  because they 
were provided as margin  for  opening bankers '  acceptances , and the amounts 
were as  fo l lows  

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Banker's Acceptance    $ 141,314    $ 96,985    $ 111,221 

 
 

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Financial assets-current       
des ignat ion as  at  fa ir  value 

through prof i t  or  loss        
  Mutual funds    $ 4,134    $ 278    $ 104 

 
8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Current       
Investments in debt 

instrument     $ 544,752    $ 586,633    $ 485,237 
       

Non-Current       
Investments in equ i ty 

instrument     $ 231,396    $ 114,703    $ 83,350 
 

 

 



 (1)  Investments in equi ty instrument  

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Non-Current       
Domestic investments       

  Listed stocks    $ 231,396    $ 114,703    $ 83,350 
 

The Group invests for medium- and long- term strateg ic purposes and expects  
to  earn prof i ts  f rom i ts  long-term investments.  The management of  the Group  
bel ieves that  i f  the shor t- term f luctuat ions on fa ir  value of  these investments  
are  inc luded in prof i t  or  loss,  i t  wi l l  be inconsistent  wi th the Group’s  
aforement ioned medium and long- term investment  strategy,  and therefore ,  
the management  chooses to des ignate  these investments as  measured at  fa ir  
va lue through other comprehens ive prof i t  or loss.  
 

  (2)   Investments in debt instrument  

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Current       
Foreign investments       
   Foreign Corporate Bonds 

(Note1)    $ 515,683    $ 554,271    $ 453,589 
  U.S. TREASURY NOTE     29,069     32,362     31,648 
    $ 544,752    $ 586,633    $ 485,237 
 
a.  The Group purchased foreign corporate bonds in 2025 and 2024. The 

coupon rates were 5.439%、 2.375% to 7.50% respect ively,  and the 
effect ive interest  rates  were 4.87%、 4.07% to 5.80% respect ive ly.  

 
9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST 

 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Current       
Time deposits with original 

maturities of more than 3 
months    $ 81,820    $ 89,560    $ 88,900 

       
The range of  market interest  rates for t ime depos its  with or ig ina l  matur it ies     
  of  more than 3 months is  as  fo l lows:  
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Time deposits with original 

maturities of more than 3 
months  3.10%  3.10%  3.10% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10. NOTES RECEIVABLE, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Notes receivable       

At amortized cost    $ 1,512,652    $ 1,422,738    $ 939,516 
 

As of  June 30,  2025,  December 31,2024 and June 30,2024, the notes receivable 
were assessed to be f ree of  doubtfu l  accounts and therefore no al lowance for  
doubtfu l  accounts was prov ided.   
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Trade receivables       

At amortized cost       

  Gross carrying amount    $ 1,896,146    $ 3,164,980    $ 2,004,255 
   Less: Allowance for 

impairment loss   (  42,904 )   (  5,993 )   (  4,743 ) 
    $ 1,853,242    $ 3,158,987    $ 1,999,512 
       
Other receivables     

Gross carrying amount    $ 28,810    $ 17,985    $ 11,205 
 

 (1)  Notes  receivable and t rade rece ivab les  
 

The average credi t  per iod of  sa les was 60 to  270 days.  No interest  was  
charged on trade rece ivables.   
 
The Group adopted a po l icy of  new customers’ credi t  rat ing and, when 
necessar i ly,  obta ined suff ic ient  col latera l to mit igate  the r isk  of  f inanc ia l loss  
f rom defau lts . Credi t  rat ing informat ion is  obtained f rom independent rat ing 
agencies  where ava i lable  or,  i f  not  avai lable,  the Group uses  other  publ ic ly 
ava i lable  f inanc ial  informat ion or  i ts  own trading records  to  rate i ts  major  
customers. The Group cont inuous ly monitored the cred it  ra t ings of  i ts  
customers and i ts  credi t  exposure.  To contro l  the credi t  exposure,  the Group 
wi l l  dec ide a t ransact ion l im it  for  customers.  
 
In order to min imize credi t  r isk , the management of  the Group has de legated  
a team responsib le for determining cred it  l im its, credi t  approvals and other  
monitor ing procedures to ensure that  act ion is taken to recover overdue 
debts . In addi t ion, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of  each  
indiv idua l trade receivable at  the end of  the year to ensure that  adequate 
a l lowance is  made for  poss ib le i r recoverab le amounts . In th is  regard, the  
management bel ieves the Goup’s cred it  r isk  was s ignif icant ly reduced.  
 
The Group measures  the loss a l lowance for  trade receivab les at  an amount  
equal to l i fet ime expec ted credi t  losses (ECL) in compl iance wi th IFRS 9. The  
expected credi t  losses on trade receivables are est imated us ing an aging 
ana lys is by reference to the past  defaul t  exper ience of  the debtor  and an 
ana lys is of  the debtor ’s current  f inanc ia l  posi t ion, adjusted for general  
economic condi t ions of  the indus try in which the debtors  operate and an 
assessment of  both the current as  wel l  as  the forecas ted di rect ion of  
economic condit ions at the report ing date.  As  the Group’s h istor ica l credi t  



loss exper ience does not show s ignif icant ly d ifferent loss pat terns for  
d i fferent  customer segments,  the provis ion for loss a l lowance based on past  
due s tatus is  not  fur ther  d is t inguished according to the Group’s  d ifferent  
customer base.  The est imated percentages of  expec ted credi t  loss of  
receivables are based the rece ivab les ’ aging analys is.  
 
The Group wr ites off  a trade receivable when there is  informat ion indicat ing 
that  the debtor  is in severe f inanc ia l d i ff icu l ty and there is no real ist ic  
prospect  of  recovery.  For  trade receivables that  have been wr i t ten off ,  the 
Group cont inues to engage in  recourse ac t ion to at tempt to recover  the 
receivables.  The recover ies,  i f  any,  are recognized in prof i t  or loss.  

 
Aging ana lys is of  t rade rece ivab les and al lowance for  impairment loss were as  

fol lows:  
June 30,  2025  

  Not Past Due  1 to 30 Days  31 to 60 Days  61 to 90 Days  
91 to 180 

Days  
181 to 360 

Days  
Over 360 

Days  Total 
Expected credit loss 

percentage  0%  1% 
 

5% 
 

10% 
 

25% 
 

50% 
 

100% 
 

Gross carrying 
amount    $ 1,797,406    $ 81    $ 59,116    $ 3,396    $ 7,642    $ 28,505    $ -    $ 1,896,146 

Loss allowance 
(Lifetime ECLs)     -    (  1 )   (  7,713 )   (  3,360 )   (  7,078 )   (  24,752 )     -    (  42,904 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 1,797,406    $ 80    $ 51,403    $ 36    $ 564    $ 3,753    $ -    $ 1,853,242 

 

December 31,  2024  

  Not Past Due  1 to 30 Days  31 to 60 Days  61 to 90 Days  
91 to 180 

Days  
181 to 360 

Days  
Over 360 

Days  Total 
Expected credit loss 

percentage  0%  1% 
 

5% 
 

10% 
 

25% 
 

50% 
 

100% 
 

Gross carrying 
amount    $ 2,995,555    $ 125,921    $ 18,366    $ 16,458    $ 8,680    $ -    $ -    $ 3,164,980 

Loss allowance 
(Lifetime ECLs)     -   (  1,259 )   (  918 )   (  1,646 )   (  2,170 )     -     -   (  5,993 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 2,995,555    $ 124,662    $ 17,448    $ 14,812    $ 6,510    $ -    $ -    $ 3,158,987 

 

June 30,  2024  

  Not Past Due  1 to 30 Days  31 to 60 Days  61 to 90 Days  
9 1  t o  1 8 0 
D a y s  

1 8 1 t o  36 0 
D a y s  

Over 360 
D a y s  T o t a l 

Expected credit loss 
percentage  0%  1%  5%  10%  25%  50%  100%  

Gross carrying 
amount    $ 1,903,550    $ 7,295    $ 93,410    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 2,004,255 

Loss allowance 
(Lifetime ECLs)     -   (  73 )   (  4,670 )     -     -     -     -   (  4,743 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 1,903,550    $ 7,222    $ 88,740    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 1,999,512 

   
The movements of  the loss a l lowance of  trade receivab les were as  fol lows:  

 

  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 
Balance at January 1    $ 5,993    $ 267 

Provision     42,911     9,696 
(Reversal)   (  1,653 )   (  5,336 ) 

Foreign exchange gains and losses   (  4,347 )     116 

Balance at June 30    $ 42,904    $ 4,743 
 

Please refer to Note 28 for  the amount and related terms of  the notes  
receivable so ld by the Group.  
 

 
 



11. INVENTORIES 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Finished goods    $ 182,984    $ 315,250    $ 187,710 
Work in progress     90,231     101,939     75,271 
Raw materials     371,906     513,613     431,249 
Materials     8,791     5,528     5,681 
    $ 653,912    $ 936,330    $ 699,911 
 

The cost  of  goods  sold is  as fo l lows   
 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Cost of goods sold    $ 1,418,069    $ 1,319,849    $ 2,867,350    $ 2,434,319 
(Reversal of) write-downs 

of inventories     1,484    (  11,654 )     45,523    (  10,749 ) 
    $ 1,419,553    $ 1,308,195    $ 2,912,873    $ 2,423,570 
 

The increase in the net  real izable value of  inventor ies was due to the 
subs tant ia l sale of  obsole te inventor ies.  

 
12. SUBSIDIARIES 

 
Subs id iar ies inc luded in the consol idated f inanc ia l  s tatements：  
      Proportion of Ownership (%) 

Investor  Investee  Nature of Activities  
June 30, 

2025  
December 
31, 2024  

June 30, 
2024 

Info-Tek Corporation  INFO-TEK HOLDING 
CO., LTD. 

 Trading Business     100     100     100 

  SUN RISE 
CORPORATION 

 Investment     100     100     100 

SUN RISE CORPORATION  Info-Tek Electronics 
(Suzhou) CO.,LTD. 

 Manufacture and 
assembly of 
motherboards for 
information electronic 
products 

    92.21     92.21     92.21 

INFO-TEK HOLDING CO., 
LTD. 

 Info-Tek Electronics 
(Suzhou) CO.,LTD. 

 Manufacture and 
assembly of 
motherboards for 
information electronic 
products 

    7.79     7.79     7.79 

 
The shares of  prof i t  or  loss and other  comprehens ive income of  the subsid iar ies  
us ing the equity method for  the Six-Month Period ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 
were recognized based on the audi ted f inanc ial  s tatements of  each subsid iary for  
the same per iod.  

 
 

13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD 
 

Investments in associates 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
No Significant influence       
 Walsin New Engery Corporation    $ 2,100    $ 2,255    $ 2,340 

 



Investments accounted for under the equity method and the shares of  prof i t  or  
loss and other  comprehensive income attr ibutable to the Company are 
recognized based on the f inanc ia l s tatements of  assoc ia tes for  the same per iod,  
which have been reviewed by independent audi tors .  
 
  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 
The Group’s share of:     
 Loss from continuing operations   ( $ 155 )   ( $ 107 ) 
 Total comprehensive income(loss)   ( $ 155 )   ( $ 107 ) 
 

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

  Land  
Buildings and 
Improvements  

Machinery 
and 

Equipment  
Transportatio
n Equipment  

office 
equipment  

Other 
Equipment  

Unfinished 
project  Total 

Cost                 
Balance at January 1, 

2024    $ 101,551    $ 690,862    $ 1,447,925    $ 6,300    $ 27,522    $ 174,930    $ -    $ 2,449,090 
Additions     -     -     24,123     -     1,253     12,871     1,380     39,627 
Reclassified     -     -     37,751     -     -     384   (  278 )     37,857 
Disposals     -     -   (  3,719 )     -   (  185 )   (  360 )     -   (  4,264 ) 
Effect of foreign currency 

exchange differences     -     9,653     34,070     104     250     4,417     -     48,494 
Balance at June 30, 2024    $ 101,551    $ 700,515    $ 1,540,150    $ 6,404    $ 28,840    $ 192,242    $ 1,102    $ 2,570,804 
                 
Accumulated depreciation  
 and impairment                 
Balance at January 1, 

2024    $ -    $ 362,363    $ 843,568    $ 2,129    $ 23,720    $ 138,535    $ -    $ 1,370,315 
Depreciation expense     -     15,291     83,803     478     1,218     11,021     -     111,811 
Disposals     -     -     3,089     -     -     -     -     3,089 
Effect of foreign currency 

exchange differences     -     -   (  3,013 )     -   (  185 )   (  360 )     -   (  3,558 ) 
Balance at June 30, 2024     -     4,256     19,638     31     198     3,483     -     27,606 
Accumulated depreciation  
 and impairment    $ -    $ 381,910    $ 947,085    $ 2,638    $ 24,951    $ 152,679    $ -    $ 1,509,263 
                 
Carrying amount at 
January 1, 2024    $ 101,551    $ 328,499    $ 604,357    $ 4,171    $ 3,802    $ 36,395    $ -    $ 1,078,775 
                 
Carrying amount at 
June 30, 2024    $ 101,551    $ 318,605    $ 593,065    $ 3,766    $ 3,889    $ 39,563    $ 1,102    $ 1,061,541 
                 
Cost                 
Balance at January 1, 

2025    $ 101,551    $ 789,187    $ 1,595,340    $ 7,998    $ 28,982    $ 211,709    $ 160    $ 2,734,927 
Additions     -     285     12,523     -     2,262     10,083     5,387     30,540 
Reclassified     -     -     57,305     -     361     -   (  1,093 )     56,573 
Disposals     -     -   (  23,138 )   (  50 )   (  877 )   (  2,479 )     -   (  26,544 ) 
Effect of foreign currency 

exchange differences     -   (  39,042 )   (  122,774 )   (  342 )   (  886 )   (  17,325 )     -   (  180,369 ) 
Balance at June 30, 2025    $ 101,551    $ 750,430    $ 1,519,256    $ 7,606    $ 29,842    $ 201,988    $ 4,454    $ 2,615,127 
                 
Accumulated depreciation  
 and impairment                 
Balance at January 1, 

2025    $ -    $ 400,386    $ 1,041,168    $ 3,183    $ 25,934    $ 164,498    $ -    $ 1,635,169 
Depreciation expense     -     18,709     85,445     629     1,113     12,953     -     118,849 
Disposals     -     -   (  22,274 )     -   (  874 )   (  2,474 )     -   (  25,622 ) 
Effect of foreign currency 

exchange differences     -   (  15,660 )   (  81,476 )   (  170 )   (  686 )   (  13,614 )     -   (  111,606 ) 
Balance at June 30, 2025    $ -    $ 403,435    $ 1,022,863    $ 3,642    $ 25,487    $ 161,363    $ -    $ 1,616,790 
                 
Carrying amount at 
January 1, 2025    $ 101,551    $ 388,801    $ 554,172    $ 4,815    $ 3,048    $ 47,211    $ 160    $ 1,099,758 
                 
Carrying amount at 
June 30, 2025    $ 101,551    $ 346,995    $ 496,393    $ 3,964    $ 4,355    $ 40,625    $ 4,454    $ 998,337 



The above i tems of  proper ty,  plant and equipment are deprec iated on a 
stra ight- l ine bas is over  their  est imated useful  l ives as fol lows:  
 

Buildings   
Main buildings      35-45 year 
Electrical mechanical and power equipment  3-35 year 

Machinery and Equipment  2-10 year 
Transportation Equipment  5 year 
Office Equipment  2-5 year 
Other Equipment  3-10 year 

   
 

15. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 
 

 (1)  Right-of-use assets  

 

 
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Carrying amounts       

Land    $ 33,392    $ 37,465    $ 35,551 

Buildings     111,112     29,033     52,191 

Machinery and Equipment     1,136     1,403     2,483 

Transportation equipment     1,666     2,149     1,904 
    $ 147,306    $ 70,050    $ 92,129 
 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Additions to right-of-use 

assets    $ 108,153    $ 2,263    $ 108,153    $ 2,263 
         
Depreciation charged for 

right-of-use assets         
Land    $ 547    $ 533    $ 1,110    $ 1,059 
Buildings     13,386     11,711     25,237     23,184 
Machinery and 

Equipment     94     436     192     1,006 
Office Equipment     178     224     378     440 
    $ 14,205    $ 12,904    $ 26,917    $ 25,689 

 

In  addi t ion to the addit ion and recognit ion of  deprec iat ion expenses l is ted 
above,  there were no major subleases and impairments  of  the r ight-of-use 
assets of  the Group in June 30, 2025 and 2024 for  the Six-month per iod ended.  
 
 

  (2)  Lease l iab i l i t ies  

 
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Carrying amount       

Current    $ 62,787    $ 30,622    $ 49,590 

Non-current     56,648     4,644     8,801 
    $ 119,435    $ 35,266    $ 58,391 
 



Range of  d iscount rates for  lease l iab i l i t ies  were as fo l lows:  

 
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Land  1.031%  1.031%  1.031% 
Buildings  1.80%~3.70%  1.80%~3.70%  1.80%~3.70% 

Machinery and Equipment  1.80%~4.45%  1.35%~4.45%  1.35%~4.45% 

Transportation Equipment  1.80%~3.65%  1.80%~4.70%  1.80%~4.70% 
 
  (3)  Other  lease informat ion 
  

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 

Expenses relating to 
short-term leases    $ 4,479    $ 4,578    $ 11,878    $ 8,689 

Expenses relating to 
low-value asset leases    $ -    $ 6    $ -    $ 13 

Total cash outflow of 
leases    $ 10,718    $ 13,799    $ 35,733    $ 34,481 

 
 

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Computer Software    $ 15,834    $ 14,186    $ 17,219 
 

Except for  the recognit ion of  amort izat ion expenses,  the Group’s  other  
intang ib le assets  d id not  incur  any s ignif icant  addi t ions,  d isposals,  or  
impairments dur ing the per iods f rom January 1 to June 30,2025 and 2024.  
Amort izat ion expenses are provided on a s tra ight- l ine bas is  over  the fol lowing 
useful  l ives :  

Computer Software  2-8 year 
 
 

17. OTHER ASSETS 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Current       
Prepayments    $ 91,752    $ 69,134    $ 102,205 
Prepayment for purchases     1,700     2,668     3,488 
Payment on behalf of others     66,356     20,850     50,516 
Other current financial assets

（Note6）     141,314     96,985     111,221 
Others     29,797     1,363     134 

   $ 330,919    $ 191,000    $ 267,564 
    
Non-current       
Prepayments for equipment    $ 131,716    $ 69,651    $ 122,853 
Others     24,021     30,458     34,367 
    $ 155,737    $ 100,109    $ 157,220 



 
18. BORROW INGS 

 
 a.  Shor t- term borrowings  

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Secured borrowings (Note 30)       

Notes Receivable Financing (1)    $ -    $ 22,390    $ - 
       

Unsecured borrowings       

Line of credit borrowings (2)     913,640     639,560     468,900 
    $ 913,640    $ 661,950    $ 468,900 

 

i .  Notes  receivable f inanc ing is secured by cer ta in notes  receivable of  the       
Group (see Note 10) . As of  June 30, 2025, the effect ive annual interest  ra te  
was 2.60%. 
 
i i .  The interest  ra tes  on the borrowings ranged f rom 1.85% to 2.49%、 1.82% 
to 2.60% and 1.69% to 2.6% as of  June 30,  2025、 December 31,2024 and 
June 30,  2024,  respec t ively.  
 

   b.  Long-term borrowings 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Unsecured borrowings       

Line of credit borrowings   $ -    $ 89,560   $  88,900 

Less: Current portion   (  - )   (  89,560 )   (  88,900 ) 

Long-term borrowings     $ -    $ -    $ - 
 

The interest  rate on the borrowings were 2.7% as of  December 31,2024 and 
June 30,2024, respect ively.  
 
 

19. Notes payable and Accounts payable 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Notes payable       
Occurred as a result of business    $ 674,573    $ 484,212    $ 555,939 
       
Accounts  payable        
Occurred as a result of business    $ 1,195,946    $ 2,469,698    $ 1,018,867 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20. Other l iabi l i t ies 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Other payables       

Dividends payable    $ 156,976    $ -    $ 217,352 

Salaries and bonuses payable     101,423     160,553     108,615 

Coping tools payable     77,927     49,484     77,523 

Payable service fee     43,610     55,082     35,729 

Repairs payable     42,957     50,125     48,311 

Equipment payables     31,099     18,979     38,175 

Freight payable     25,874     34,592     30,480 

Premium payable     2,492     2,308     2,299 

Employee benefits payable     1,092     1,086     471 

Interest payable     507     436     242 

Others     57,026     66,266     91,386 
    $ 540,983    $ 438,911    $ 650,583 
       
Other current liabilities       
Allowance for returns and 

discounts    $ 185,830    $ 193,346    $ 171,971 

Temporary receivable     2,899     3,301     3,272 

Contract liabilities     1,275     1,283     1,332 

Others     3,679     45,737     23,232 
    $ 193,683    $ 243,667    $ 199,807 
 

Relevant product  return and discount l iabi l i ty reserves are est imated product  
returns and d iscounts  that may occur  based on his tor ica l  exper ience,  
management judgment  and other  known reasons.  

 
21. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

 
From Apr i l  1  to  June 30,2025 and 2024 and for  the s ix-month per iod ended June 
30,  2025 and 2024,  the pens ion expenses  of  def ined benef it  plans were $16 
thousand, $29 thousand, $31 thousand and $58 thousand, respect ively, and 
these numbers were ca lculated based on the pension cost  rate  determ ined by 
the ac tuar ia l  calculat ion as of  December 31,  2024 and 2023,  respect ively.  

 
22. EQUITY 

 
 (1)  Share capi ta l  

 
Ord inary shares 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Authorized shares (in 

thousands)     136,060     136,060     136,060 

Authorized capital    $ 1,360,600    $ 1,360,600    $ 1,360,600 
Issued and paid shares (in 

thousands)     121,251     121,251     121,251 

Issued capital    $ 1,212,511    $ 1,212,511    $ 1,212,511 



a.  As of  June 30,  2025, the Company's paid- in capi ta l  was $1,212,511 
thousand, d iv ided into 121,251 thousand shares with a par  value of  $10 
per  share,  a l l  of  which are ord inary shares.  
 

b.  Ful ly paid  ordinary shares,  which have a  par  value of  $10,  carry one 
vote per share and carry a r ight  to  d iv idends.  
 
 

(2)   Capita l  surplus 
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
May be used to offset a 

deficit, distributed as cash 
dividends, or transferred to 
share capital (a)     

Additional paid-in capital    $ 179,924    $ 179,924    $ 179,924 

Treasury share transactions     44,199     44,199     44,199 

Only used in deficit offset (b)       
exercising the right of 

disgorgement     85     85     85 

Not for other usage       

Employee Stock Options     7,646     7,646     7,646 
    $ 231,854    $ 231,854    $ 231,854 
 
a.    Such capi ta l  surplus may be used to offset  a def ic i t ;  in addi t ion, when 

the Company has no def ic it ,  such capita l  surplus may be d is t r ibuted as  
cash div idends or  t ransferred to  share capital  ( l im ited to a  cer ta in 
percentage of  the Company’s  capi ta l  surplus and once a year).  
 

b.    This  t ype of  capital  surplus  represents  the Company's  exerc ise of  the 
r ight  of  d isgorgement  in accordance with Ar t ic le 157 of  the Securi t ies  
and Exchange Ac t and the recogni t ion of  the benef i t  f rom the exercise 
of  the r ight as capita l surplus –  other  

 
(3)   Retained earnings and div idend po l icy 

 
Under the d iv idend pol icy as  set  forth in the Company’s ar t ic les of  
incorporat ion ( the “Ar t ic les”) ,  i f  the Company has current prof i ts in the 
f inanc ia l  statement,  the losses should be made up f irs t ,  and then 10% of  the  
remaining prof i ts  would be a l located as  Legal  reserves,  after  that the specia l  
reserves are provis ioned or  reversed according to the law. I f  prof i ts are  
remaining,  i t  wi l l  be considered as d ist r ibutab le prof i t  along wi th the 
accumulated unal located earnings f rom the beg inn ing of  the per iod.  The  
distr ibut ion plan wi l l  be proposed by the Board of  Direc tors  and the prof i ts  
wi l l  be d ist r ibuted after  the reso lut ion of  the shareholders  meet ing for  the 
pol ic ies on the dis tr ibut ion of  employees’ compensat ion and remunerat ion of  
d irectors  in the Ar t ic les,  refer to employees ’ compensat ion and remunerat ion 
of  d irectors  in Note 24-7 to the conso l idated f inanc ia l s tatements.  
 
The industr ia l environment that the Company re lates to is vola t i le ,  and its  
enterpr ise l i fe  cyc le  has entered the mature stage.  Consider ing our  future 
work ing capita l requirements and long- term f inancia l planning, and the need 
of  sat isfying the need for  cash f low by shareholders,  thus  the annual  cash 
dividend d is t r ibut ion shal l  not  be less than 5% of  the tota l  shareholder  
d ividends.   
 



Al igning with  the current  year 's earnings for  a l lotment and the ba lanc ing 
dividend pol icy,  as wel l  as  in accordance wi th re levant laws and regulat ions,  
the Company may a l locate a l l  or  part  of  i ts  cap i ta l  reserve as capi ta l  increase 
al lotments.  The dis tr ibut ion p lan shal l  be proposed by the Board of  Directors  
and dis t r ibuted after  being approved by the shareholders  meet ing resolut ion.  
  
Appropr iat ion of  earn ings  to the legal  reserve shal l  be made unt i l  the legal  
reserve equals the Company’s pa id- in cap ita l.  The legal  reserve may be used 
to offset  def ic i t .  I f  the Company has no def ic it  and the legal  reserve has  
exceeded 25% of  the Company’s  paid- in capi ta l ,  the excess may be 
transferred to capi ta l  or  d istr ibuted in cash.  
 
The Company has prov ided and reversed the spec ia l reserve in accordance 
with the "FSC No.  1090150022 " ,  "FSC No.  10901500221 "  and "Quest ions  
and Answers on the Appl icat ion of  Internat ional  F inanc ial  Report ing  
Standards ( IFRSs) to the Provis ion of  Specia l Reserve".  
 
The appropr iat ions of  earnings for  2024 and 2023 approved in  the  
shareholders ’ meet ings on June 18, 2025 and June 4,  2024, respect ive ly,  
were as  fo l lows:  
  Appropriation of Earnings 
  For the Years Ended December 31 
  2024  2023 
Legal reserve    $ 39,354    $ 54,316 

Cash dividends    $ 156,976    $ 217,352 

Dividends Per Share (NT$)    $ 1.30    $ 1.80 

 

For informat ion regarding the resolu t ions proposed by the Board of  Directors  
and those approved by the Shareholders '  Meet ing, p lease refer to the 
"Market Observat ion Post  System" on the Taiwan Stock  Exchange. 
 

(4)   Specia l  reserve 
 

        As the increase in re ta ined earnings generated f rom the ini t ia l appl icat ion of  
IFRSs was insuf f ic ient  for appropr iat ion as  d iv idends, i t  was appropr iated to 
a specia l reserve. As the specia l reserve appropriated by foreign operat ions  
( including subsid iar ies) due to the exchange d if ferences upon trans lat ion of  
their  f inanc ia l  s tatements was reversed in propor t ion to the Company’s  
d isposal of  the foreign operat ions;  upon the Company’s loss of  s igni f icant  
inf luence,  the ent ire spec ia l  reserve re lat ing to exchange dif ferences ar is ing 
f rom those foreign operat ions wi l l  be reversed.  Addit iona l spec ia l  reserve 
should be appropr iated for the amount equal to the d if ference between net  
deb it  balance reserves and the special  reserve appropr iated on the f irst - t ime 
adopt ion of  IFRSs. Any specia l reserve appropr iated may be reversed to the 
extent  that  the net  debi t  ba lance reverses ; the reversed amount may be 
distr ibuted.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(5)   Other  equity i tems 
  

 a.  Exchange differences on t rans lat ing the f inanc ia l  s tatements of  fore ign 

operat ions  

  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 
Balance at January 1   ( $ 45,008 )   ( $ 117,258 ) 
Current period generated     
  Exchange differences arising 

from the translation of net 
assets of foreign operating 
entities   (  201,800 )     58,450 

Other comprehensive income or loss 
for the period   (  201,800 )     58,450 

Balance at June 30   ( $ 246,808 )   ( $ 58,808 ) 
 
 

 b.  Unrea lized valuat ion gain on f inanc ia l  assets  a t FVTOCI 
 

  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 
Balance at January 1    $ 14,360    $ 37,165 

Current period generated    

  Unrealized profit and loss     

Debt Tools     8,084    (  1,407 ) 

Equity Tools   (  25,557 )   (  2,133 ) 
Other comprehensive income or loss 

for the period   (  17,473 )   (  3,540 ) 

Balance at June 30   ( $ 3,113 )    $ 33,625 
 
 

 c .  Remeasurement  of  def ined benef i t  obl igat ion 
 
  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 
Balance at January 1 and June 30    $ 8,563    $ 7,432 

 
 

(6)   Treasury shares 
 

Purpose of Acquisition  

Treasury shares 
granted to 

employees( In 
Thousands) 

Shares Held as of January 1 and June 30, 2025     500 
   

Shares Held as of January 1 and June 30, 2024     500 
 

Pursuant to the Secur i t ies and Exchange Act of  the ROC, the treasury shares  
held by the Company should not  be p ledged as col latera l ,  are  not e l ig ib le for  
d ividends and do not have vot ing r ights .



 
23.  REVENUE 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Revenue from contracts 
with Customers         
  Sale of Goods    $ 1,627,081    $ 1,559,978    $ 3,275,665    $ 2,869,531 
 

 Please refer  to Note 34 for  a  breakdown of  revenues 
 
 

24. NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 
Net Prof i t  f rom continuing operat ions inc luding the fo l lowing i tems：  
  

 (1)  Other  income 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Dividends income    $ 12,464     $ -    $ 12,464     $ - 
Rental income     83    68     416     438 
Others     7,149     8,887     18,802     22,149 
    $ 19,696    $ 8,955    $ 31,682    $ 22,587 

 
 (2)  In terest income 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Cash in banks    $ 2,077    $ 3,782    $ 3,945    $ 6,857 
Debt instrument 

investments at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive 
income     6,834     3,676     14,392     5,121 

    $ 8,911    $ 7,458    $ 18,337    $ 11,978 
 

 (3)  Other  gains  and losses  

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Gain (loss) on disposal of 

property, plant and 
equipment    $ 343    $ -    $ 315    ( $ 706 ) 

Gain from changes of 
financial assets at fair 
value through profit     40     10     49     39 

Foreign exchange gains 
(losses)   (  98,033 )     11,712   (  83,475 )     24,995 

Others   (  1,348 )   (  269 )   (  1,362 )   (  270 ) 
   ( $ 98,998 )    $ 11,453   ( $ 84,473 )    $ 24,058 
 



 
 (4)  Finance costs  

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Interest in lease 

liabilities    $ 364    $ 552    $ 583    $ 1,186 
Discounted interest in 

notes receivable     5,018     8,769     12,756     17,964 
Interest in bank loans     4,758     2,617     9,206     5,306 
    $ 10,140    $ 11,938    $ 22,545    $ 24,456 

 
(5)   Deprec iat ion and amort izat ion  

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 

An analysis of depreciation 
by function         

Operating costs    $ 54,016    $ 54,682    $ 111,149    $ 107,353 
Operating expenses     18,121     15,195     34,617     30,147 

    $ 72,137    $ 69,877    $ 145,766    $ 137,500 
         

An analysis of amortization 
by function         

Operating costs    $ 82    $ 90    $ 168    $ 179 
Operating expenses     876     683     1,654     1,111 

    $ 958    $ 773    $ 1,822    $ 1,290 
 

Amort izat ion expenses of  in tangib le assets  are a l located to indiv idual l ine  
i tems; p lease refer  to Note 16.  

 
(6)  Employee Benef i t  Expenses 

 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Short-term employee benefits         
   Salaries    $ 155,549    $ 133,753    $ 294,503    $ 241,682 
  Labor/Health Insurance     20,802     18,082     42,338     35,614 
     176,351     151,835     336,841     277,296 
Post-employment benefits         
  Defined contribution plan     1,282     1,025     2,570     2,300 
  Defined Benefit Plan 

（Note 21） 
 

   16 
 

   29     31 
 

   58 
     1,298     1,054     2,601     2,358 
Other employee benefit 

expenses 
 

   13,413 
 

   10,205     27,946 
 

   22,316 
Total employee benefit 

expenses 
 

  $ 191,062 
 

  $ 163,094    $ 367,388 
 

  $ 301,970 
         
Summary by function         
  Operating costs    $ 139,249    $ 103,080    $ 260,879    $ 188,724 
  Operating expenses     51,813     60,014     106,509     113,246 
    $ 191,062    $ 163,094    $ 367,388    $ 301,970 

 
 
 



 (7)  Employees ’ compensation and remunerat ion of  d irectors  
 

The Company accrues employees’ compensat ion and remunerat ion of  
d irectors  at  the rates of  2%-10% and no h igher  than 2%, respect ively,  of  net  
prof i t  before income tax,  employees’ compensation, and remunerat ion of  
d irectors . In accordance with the amendment to the Secur it ies  and Exchange 
Act  in August 2024,  the Company plans to seek approval  at  the 2025 
shareholders '  meet ing to amend its  Ar t ic les of  Incorporat ion, s t ipu lat ing that  
no less than 50% of  the employee remunerat ion a l located for  the year shal l  
be dis tr ibuted to grassroots employees .  
 
For  the Six -month per iod ended June 30,2025 and 2024, the employees’ 
compensat ion and the remunerat ion of  d irectors  and supervisors  were as  
f lows:   
 
Accrual  rate  

  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 
Employees’ compensation  3.8%  3.8% 
Remuneration of directors  1.4%  1.4% 
 

Amounts 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Employees’ 

compensation   ( $ 542 )    $ 2,828    $ 93    $ 5,707 
Remuneration of 

directors   ( $ 200 )    $ 1,132    $ 34    $ 2,102 
 

I f  there  is  a change in the amounts after  the annual  consolidated f inanc ial  
statements are author ized for  issue, the d ifferences are recorded as a  
change in the account ing est imate and adjusted in the next  year.  
 
The appropr iat ions of  employees ’ compensat ion and remunerat ion of  
d irectors  for  2024 and 2023 that  were resolved by the board of  d irectors  on 
February 19,  2025 and February 22, 2024,  respec t ively,  were as below:  
 
  For the Years Ended December 31 
  2024  2023 

  Cash  Cash 
Employees’ compensation    $ 15,522    $ 24,235 
Remuneration of directors    $ 5,719    $ 8,929 
 

There was no difference between the actua l amounts of  employees ’ 
compensat ion and remunerat ion of  d irectors  and superv isors  paid and the  
amounts recognized in the conso l idated f inanc ia l  s tatements for the years  
ended December 31,2024 and 2023.  
 
Informat ion on the compensat ion of  employees  and remunerat ion of  d irectors  
and supervisors  reso lved by the Company’s board of  d irectors is  available at  
the Market  Observat ion Post  System website of  the Taiwan Stock  Exchange. 

 
 



(8)   Foreign net exchange gain or  loss  
 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Foreign exchange gain   ( $ 6,432 )    $ 14,862    $ 8,209    $ 29,700 
Foreign exchange loss   (  91,601 )   (  3,150 )   (  91,684 )   (  4,705 ) 
Net exchange gain (loss)   ( $ 98,033 )    $ 11,712    ( $ 83,475 )    $ 24,995  

 
 

25. INCOME TAXES RELATING TO CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 

 (1)  Income taxes  recognized in prof i t  or  loss 
Deta i l  of  income tax was as fol lows:：  
 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 

Current income tax expenses         
  In respect of the current 

period    $ 16,034    $ 34,703    $ 29,589    $ 54,683 
  Income tax on 

unappropriated 
earnings     9,861     13,575     9,861     13,575 

  Adjustments to prior 
year     9,181    (  856 )     9,181    (  856 ) 

  Others          35,159          35,159 
Deferred income tax         
  In respect of the current 

period   (  16,627 )   (  11,205 )    ( 28,996 )   (  418 ) 
Income tax expense 

recognized in profit or loss    $ 18,449    $ 71,376    $ 19,635    $ 102,143 
 

The tax  rate  appl icab le to subs id iar ies  in the PRC is  25%; in addit ion,  
according to  the management method of  h igh- tech enterpr ise recognit ion.  
Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. High-tech enterpr ises  that  have been 
approved as nat iona l key support  are ent i t led to a preferent ial  tax rate of  15% 
for corporate income tax . Taxes generated in other  jur isdict ions are  
ca lculated according to the tax ra tes  appl icable  in the respect ive  
jur isdic t ions.  
 

 
(2)  Income taxes  recognized in other  comprehensive income 

 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Deferred income tax         
 In respect of the 
current period         
 —Conversion of 

foreign operating 
institutions    $ 62,672    ( $ 4,107 )    $ 50,434    ( $ 14,612 ) 

 
(3)   Income tax examinat ion 
 

Income tax returns of  the Company through 2023 have been assessed and 
approved by the tax author i t ies.  



 
26. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 
Uni t :  NT$ Per  Share  

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 

Basic earnings per share   ( $ 0.16 )    $ 0.67   ( $ 0.03 )    $ 1.12 
Diluted earnings per share   ( $ 0.16 )    $ 0.66   ( $ 0.03 )    $ 1.11 
 

The EPS and weighted average number of  ord inary shares outstanding ( in 
thousands of  shares) were as  fo l lows:   

 
Net income available to common shareholders 
 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Net income available to 

common shareholders   ( $ 19,126 )    $ 80,183   ( $ 3,793 )    $ 134,989 
Net income used to calculate 

basic and diluted earnings 
per share   ( $ 19,126 )    $ 80,183   ( $ 3,793 )    $ 134,989 

 

Shares 

Uni t:  Thousand shares 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares used in the 
computation of basic earnings 
per share     120,751     120,751     120,751     120,751 

Effect of potentially dilutive 
ordinary shares         

  Shares issued for 
employees’ compensation     -      130     -     421 

Weighted average number of 
ordinary shares used in the 
computation of diluted earnings 

per share     120,751     120,881     120,751     121,172 
 

I f  the Company may choose to pay employees in stock  or  cash,  the calcu lat ion 
of  d i luted earnings  per  share assumes that  employee compensat ion wi l l  be paid 
in s tock  and is  included in the weighted-average number of  shares outs tanding  
when the potent ial  common stock has a d i lut ive  effec t to calculate d i luted 
earnings per  share.  The di lut ive  effect  of  these potent ia l common shares wi l l  
a lso cont inue to be considered in the calcu lat ion of  d i luted earn ings per share 
before  the number o f  employee compensat ion shares  is  reso lved at  the 
fol lowing annual  shareholders '  meet ing.  
 

 
27. CASHLESS TRANSACTION 

 
The Group carr ied out  the fo l lowing non-cash inves tment act iv i t ies in for  the 
Six-month per iod ended June 30, 2025 and 2024:  
 



  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 
Increase in property, plant and equipment   ( $ 30,540 )   ( $ 39,627 ) 

Increase in prepaid equipment   (  143,628 )   (  48,786 ) 
Increase (decrease) in payables for 

equipment     12,120    (  16,216 ) 
Acquisition of real estate, plant and 

equipment pay cash   ( $ 162,048 )   ( $ 104,629 ) 
 

Cash div idends resolved to be dis tr ibuted by the shareholders ’ meet ing of  the 
company had not  yet been pa id as  of  June 30,  2025 (see Notes 20 and 22) .  

 
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 
a.  Fair  va lue of  f inanc ia l  instruments not  measured at  fa ir  va lue   

 
The management considers  the carrying amounts  of  f inanc ia l  assets  and 
f inanc ia l  l iabi l i t ies recognized in the consol idated f inanc ia l  statements 
approx imate the fa ir  values.  
 

b.  Fair  value of  f inanc ia l  ins truments that are measured at fair  value on a 
recurr ing bas is.  
 
June 30,  2025  

  Level 1 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   
Mutual funds    $ 4,134 
   
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income   
Investments in equ i ty instrument    
  Domestic listed shares    $ 231,396 
   
Investments in debt instrument    
  Foreign Bonds    $ 515,683 
  U.S. TREASURY NOTE     29,069 
    $ 544,752 
 
December 31,  2024  
  Level 1 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   
Mutual funds    $ 278 
   
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income   
Investments in equ i ty instrument    
  Domestic listed shares    $ 114,703 
   
Investments in debt instrument    
  Foreign Bonds    $ 554,271 
  U.S. TREASURY NOTE     32,362 
    $ 586,633 



June 30,  2024  

  Level 1 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   
Mutual funds    $ 104 
   
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income   
Investments in equ i ty instrument    
  Domestic listed shares    $ 83,350 
   
Investments in debt instrument    
  Foreign Bonds    $ 453,589 
  U.S. TREASURY NOTE     31,648 
    $ 485,237 
 

There were no t ransfers  between Levels  1 and 2  for  the s ix-month per iod  
ended June 30,2025 and 2024.  
 
 

c .  Categor ies of  f inanc ia l  ins truments  
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Financial assets       
Financial assets at FVTPL       
Financial assets at amortized 

cost（Note 1）    $ 4,134    $ 278    $ 104 
Financial assets at FVTOCI-     3,901,360     5,076,978     3,738,037 
 Investment in equity 

instruments     231,396     114,703     83,350 
 Investment in debt 
instruments     544,752     586,633     485,237 

       
Financial liabilities       
Financial liabilities at 

amortized cost（Note 2）     3,335,753     4,164,939     2,803,203 
 
Note 1:  The balance inc ludes f inancia l  assets measured at  amort ized cost ,  

such as  cash and cash equivalents,  notes receivable,  accounts 
receivable, accounts  rece ivable -  re lated part ies , other  receivables, 
other receivables  -  re lated par t ies  and other  f inanc ia l  assets .  

 
Note 2： The balance is  inc ludes  f inancia l  l iab i l i t ies  measured at  amort ized 

cost ,  such as shor t- term loan、 notes payable、 accounts payables、
accounts  payables-re lated par t ies、 other  payables、 other payables-  
re lated part ies and long-term loans due with in one year  .  

 
d.  Financia l r isk  management object ives  and po lic ies  

 
The Group’s  major f inanc ia l ins truments inc lude cash and cash equivalents,  
notes receivab le,  trade receivab les,  trade rece ivables-re lated par t ies , other  
receivables,  other  rece ivab les-re lated par t ies,  borrowings,  notes payable,  
trade payables,  trade payables-re lated part ies,  other  payables, other  



payables-re lated par t ies and lease l iabi l i t ies.  The Company’s  corporate  
treasury func t ion provides  services to the bus iness;  coordinates access to  
domest ic  and internat ional f inancia l markets  and monitors  and manages the 
f inanc ia l  r isks re lat ing to the operat ions of  the Company through internal  r isk  
repor ts  that  ana lyze exposures by degree and magni tude of  r isks. These  
r isks inc lude market  r isk  ( inc luding foreign currency r isk  and interest  rate  
r isk) ,  cred i t  r isk  and l iquid it y r isk . 
 
i .  Market r isk  

 
The pr imary f inanc ia l  r isks undertaken by the Group as a result  of  
i ts  operat ing ac t ivi t ies are foreign currency exchange rate r isk  
(see (1) below) and in terest ra te r isk  (see (2)  below).  
(1) Foreign currency risk  
Cer ta in subs id iar ies of  the Company engage in sales and purchase 
transact ions denominated in fore ign currenc ies, thereby expos ing  
the Company to f luc tuat ions in  exchange ra tes.  
As of  the balance sheet date,  the carrying amounts of  the Group’s  
monetary assets  and monetary l iabi l i t ies  denominated in  
non- funct iona l currenc ies ( inc lud ing those monetary i tems 
denominated in non- funct iona l currencies that  have been offset  in  
the consol idated f inancial  statements)  are d isclosed in Note 32.  
 
Sensitivity analysis  
The table below sets  forth a sensi t iv i t y ana lys is of  the Group when 
the exchange ra te of  the New Taiwan do l lar or the func t ional  
currency increases or  decreases by 10% against  each re levant  
fore ign currency.  The sensi t iv i ty analys is only inc ludes  
outs tand ing foreign currency-denominated monetary i tems, and 
their  year-end translat ion is  adjusted by a 10% change in  
exchange rates.  A pos i t ive amount  in the tab le indicates a 
decrease in prof i t  after tax  when the New Taiwan dol lar  or  the 
funct iona l  currency apprec iates by 10% against  each relevant  
fore ign currency; conversely,  a deprec ia t ion of  the New Taiwan 
dol lar  or  the func t ional  currency by 10% against  each re levant  
fore ign currency would have an equal but  opposi te  effect  on prof i t  
after  tax.  
 

  
The effect of U.S. dollar on NTD as the functional 

currency 
  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 

Loss (gain)    ($ 3,367)    ($ 6,919) 
     

  
The effect of U.S. dollar on RMB as the functional 

currency 
  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024 

Loss (gain)    $ 2,006    $ 7,993 
     

 

(i)  Primari l y ar is ing f rom the U.S.  dol lar–denominated 
receivables and payables outs tanding as of  the balance 
sheet date that are not  des ignated as cash f low hedges.  
 

   (2) Interest rate risk  
The Group is exposed to interes t rate r isk  as ent i t ies wi th in the 
Group borrow funds at  both f ixed and f loat ing interest rates.  The 



Group manages i ts interest ra te r isk  by mainta ining an appropr iate  
mix of  f ixed and f loat ing rate borrowings.  The Group regular ly 
reviews its  hedging ac t iv i t ies  to ensure that  they are  a l igned wi th  
i ts  v iews on interest  rates and overal l  r isk  appet ite,  and to secure  
the most  cost-effect ive hedging strategies.  

 
    Sensitivity analysis  

The fo l lowing sensi t iv i t y ana lys is is  determ ined based on the 
exposure to interest  rate  r isk  of  der ivat ive and non-der ivat ive  
instruments  at the balance sheet date.  For  f loat ing- ra te assets and 
l iabi l i t ies,  the analys is assumes that  the amount  of  the l iab i l i t y 
outs tand ing at  the ba lance sheet  date was outstanding for  the 
ent ire repor t ing per iod.  

    I f  interest  rates had increased by 100 bas is points  (1%),  wi th a l l  
other var iables held constant,  the Group’s  prof i t  af ter  tax for  the 
s ix-month per iods ended June 30,2025 and 2024 would have 
decreased by NT$3,695 thousand and NT$2,187 thousand, 
respect ively,  mainly due to the Group’s  net  posit ion in f loat ing rate  
bor rowings.  
 

i i .  Credi t  Risk  
 

Credit  r isk  is  the r isk  o f  f inancia l  loss  to  the Group if  a counterparty fa i ls  
to meet i ts contractual  ob l igat ions . As of  the balance sheet date,  the 
Group’s max imum exposure to credit  r isk ,  which may ar ise f rom 
counterpart ies fa i l ing to d ischarge their  obl igat ions and f rom the 
f inanc ia l  guarantees granted by the Group, is  represented by the 
carrying amount of  the f inancia l assets  recognized in the consol idated 
balance sheet.  
In  order  to mit igate credi t  r isk , the management of  the Group ass igned a 
ded icated team to be respons ib le for the determinat ion of  credi t  l ine , 
credi t  approval  and other monitor ing procedures to ensure that 
appropr iate act ions have been taken to recover overdue receivables. In 
add it ion,  the Group wi l l  review the recoverab le amount of  receivables 
one by one on the balance sheet date to ensure that  unrecoverable 
receivables have been appropr iate ly derogated.  Accordingly,  the 
management  of  the company bel ieves  that  the credit  r isk  of  the Group 
has  been s igni f icant ly reduced.  
 
In  add i t ion,  s ince the counterpar ty of  l iquid  funds  and der ivat ive 
f inanc ia l  inst ruments is a  bank  with a h igh cred i t  ra t ing g iven by an 
internat ional  cred i t  rat ing agency,  the cred it  r isk  is  l im ited.  

 
 

i i i .  L iquid i t y r isk   
 

The Group has  establ ished an appropr iate l iquidi t y r isk  management  
f ramework to address i ts funding and l iquid it y management 
requirements over the shor t,  medium, and long term. The Group 
manages l iqu id i ty r isk  by mainta in ing adequate leve ls of  commit ted 
bank ing fac i l i t ies  and bor rowing capac i ty, cont inuously moni tor ing 
forecast  and actual  cash f lows,  and matching the matur i t ies  of  f inanc ia l  
assets and l iabi l i t ies .  
As of  June 30,  2025,  December 31,  2024,  and June 30,  2024,  the 
Group’s undrawn short- term bank  f inanc ing faci l i t ies  amounted to 
NT$3,102,443 thousand,  NT$2,879,899 thousand,  and NT$3,205,376 
thousand, respect ive ly.  
 



Liquid i t y and interest  ra te r isk  table for  non-derivat ive f inancial  
l iabi l i t ies  
 
The remaining contractual matur it y analys is of  non-der ivat ive f inancial  
l iabi l i t ies is  prepared based on the undiscounted cash f lows of  f inancial  
l iabi l i t ies  ( inc luding pr incipal  and est imated interest)  based on the 
ear l iest  date on which the Group may be requ ired to repay.  Therefore,  
the bank  loans that  the Group can be required to repay immediate ly are 
l is ted in the ear l ies t  per iod in  the table below,  regardless of  the 
probabi l i t y of  the bank 's immedia te execut ion of  the r ight ;  the matur it y 
ana lys is of  other  non-der ivat ive f inanc ia l  l iabi l i t ies  is prepared based 
on the agreed repayment date.  
 
For  interest cash f lows paid at  f loat ing rates, the undiscounted interes t 
amount is  der ived f rom the yie ld curve at  the balance sheet date.  
 
June 30,  2025  
  

1 to 3 months  
3 months to 

 1 year 
 

1 to 5 years 
 

Total 
Non-derivative financial 

liabilities         
No interest bearing 

liabilities    $ 1,753,998    $ 668,115    $ -    $ 2,422,113 
Lease liability     18,715     46,498     57,462     122,675 
Floating Rate Instrument     670,000     243,640     -     913,640 
    $ 2,442,713    $ 958,253    $ 57,462    $ 3,458,428 

 

December 31,  2024  
  

1 to 3 months  
3 months to 

 1 year 
 

1 to 5 years 
 

Total 
Non-derivative financial 

liabilities     
 

 
 

 
No interest bearing 

liabilities    $ 2,490,266    $ 923,163    $ -    $ 3,413,429 
Lease liability     17,505     13,487     4,771     35,763 
Floating Rate Instrument     601,510     150,000     -     751,510 
    $ 3,109,281    $ 1,086,650    $ 4,771    $ 4,200,702 

 

June 30,  2024  
  

1 to 3 months  
3 months to 

 1 year 
 

1 to 5 years 
 

Total 
Non-derivative financial 

liabilities         
No interest bearing 

liabilities    $ 1,649,685    $ 595,718    $ -    $ 2,245,403 
Lease liability     18,392     32,334     8,916     59,642 
Floating Rate Instrument     330,000     227,800     -     557,800 
    $ 1,998,077    $  855,852    $ 8,916    $ 2,862,845 
 

e.  Financia l Asset  Transfer  Information 
 
The Group did not  sel l  any accounts  receivable dur ing the per iod.  
 
Informat ion about  the Group's  sa le of  notes receivab le is as fo l lows: 
 
For  the s ix-month per iods ended June 30,  2025 and 2024,  the Group 
discounted notes receivable without  recourse in the amounts  of  
NT$2,037,449 thousand and NT$2,564,870 thousand, respect ively.  Since 



such d iscounted notes were without recourse,  the notes  receivable were 
derecognized upon discount ing.  
In  2024, the Group discounted cer ta in commerc ia l  acceptance bi l ls  
receivable in  Mainland China with banks in the amount of  NT$22,390 
thousand to set t le  payments to suppl iers. Under  the terms of  the agreements,  
i f  the commercia l  acceptance bi l ls  receivab le are  not  honored a t matur i ty,  the 
transferee has the r ight  to demand payment  of  the outstanding balance f rom 
the Group.  Accordingly,  the Group has  not  t ransferred substant ia l l y a l l  the 
r isks and rewards of  ownership of  these commercia l acceptance b i l ls  
receivable.  The Group cont inues to recognize the fu l l  amount of  the 
receivables and has pledged the t ransferred commercia l  acceptance b i l ls  
receivable as  col lateral for the re lated borrowings (see Note 18) .  
 

29. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 

  Balances and transact ions between the Company and i ts subs id iar ies,  which are 
re lated part ies  of  the Company,  have been el iminated on consolidat ion and are 
not  disc losed in th is note. Detai ls of  transact ions between the Group and o ther  
re lated part ies are d isclosed be low.  

 
(1)  Related par ty name and categor ies  

 

Related Party Name  Related Party Category 
Walsin Technology Corp.  Associate 
Walsin Lihwa Corporation  Associate 
HannStar Board Corporation  Associate 
Global Brands Manufacture Ltd.  Associate 
Suzhou Walsin Technology Electronics Co., Ltd.  Other related party 
HannStar Board Technology (Jiang Yin) Corp.  Other related party 
Prosperity Dielectrics Co., Ltd.  Other related party 
HANNSTAR DISPLAY CORP.  Other related party 

Dong Guan CMK Global Brands Manufacture Ltd.  Other related party 

VVG Inc.  Other related party 

Hannstar Display (Nanjing)  Co., Ltd.    Other related party 

Inpaq Technology Co., Ltd  Other related party 

Silitech Technology Corporation  Other related party 

Jingjia Electronics Technology (Wuhu) Co., Ltd.  Other related party 

Xurong Electronic (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.  Other related party 

Career Technology (MFG.) Co., Ltd.  Other related party 

FUCHI ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.  Other related party 

Inpaq Technology (China) Co., Ltd.  Other related party 

Walton Advanced Engineering (Suzhou) . Inc.  Other related party 

 
 (2)  Sa les revenue 

Category of related  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
party  2025  2024  2025  2024 

Other related party    $ 11,610    $ 27,251    $ 27,979    $ 36,213 
 

The terms of  the t ransac t ions are the same as those for ordinary 
non-aff i l iated par t ies , and there are no specia l  c i rcumstances.  
 
 



 (3)  Purchases of  goods 
 

Category of related  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
party  2025  2024  2025  2024 

Other related party    $ 5,763    $ 10,047    $ 9,540    $ 15,572 
Associate     1,031     1,227     1,576     1,564 
    $ 6,794    $ 11,274    $ 11,116    $ 17,136 
 

The terms of  the t ransac t ions are the same as those for ordinary 
non-aff i l iated par t ies , and there are no specia l  c i rcumstances.  
 
 

  (4)  Receivables f rom related par t ies 
 

Account items  
Category of 
related party  

June 30, 
2025  

December 31, 
2024  

June 30, 
2024 

Accounts Receivab les 
- Related Parties 

 Other related 
party 

   $ 22,569    $ 45,993    $ 32,449 

         
Other Receivab les - 

related parties 
 Other related 

party 
   $ 201    $ 158    $ - 

 
(5)  Payables to re lated par t ies 

 

Account items  
Category of 
related party  

June 30, 
2025  

December 31, 
2024  

June 30, 
2024 

Accounts Payable - 
Related Parties 

 Other related 
party 

   $ 7,366    $ 14,113    $ 12,902 

  Associate     1,348     1,819     1,511 
      $ 8,714    $ 15,932    $ 14,413 
         
Other payables - related 

parties 
 Associate    $ 1,659     1,522     2,006 

  Other related 
party 

    238     3,154     3,595 

      $ 1,897    $ 4,676    $ 5,601 
 
The outs tand ing trade payables  to re lated part ies  are unsecured.  
 
 

(6)  Prepayments 
 
 

Account Item 
 Category of  From April 1 to June 30  

For the Six-Month Period 
Ended June 30 

 related party  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Management and 

general expenses - 
Professional service 
fees 

 Associate    $ 2,206    $ 2,225    $ 4,400    $ 4,663 

Management and 
general expenses - 
stock expense 

 Associate    $ 431    $ 410    $ 811    $ 658 

Management and 
general expenses – 
Miscellaneous 
expenses 

 Associate    $ -    $ -    $ 90    $ 70 



Management and 
general expenses – 
Miscellaneous 
expenses 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ -    $ 527    $ 312    $ 756 

Management and 
general expenses – 
Traveling expenses 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 24 

Management and 
general expenses - 
Professional service 
fees 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ -    $ 150    $ 40    $ 345 

Sales expenses – 
Social expenses 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 11 

Manufacturing 
overhead- repair 
expenses 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 6 

Manufacturing 
overhead- 
Professional service 
fees 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ 5,329    $ 195    $ 5,524    $ 530 

Manufacturing 
overhead- Traveling 
expenses 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 31 

Manufacturing 
overhead- 
Processing fee 

 Other related 
parties 

   $ 163    $ -    $ 163    $ - 

Other revenue  Other related 
parties 

   $ 467    $ -    $ 467    $ - 

 
(7)  Lease Agreement  

 

Category of related party 
 For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
 2025  2024 

Acquisition of right-of-use assets     
Other related parties    $ 108,153    $ - 

 

Account items  
Category of 
related party  

June 30, 
2025  

December 31, 
2024  

June 30, 
2024 

Lease liabilities  Other related 
party 

   $ 108,405    $ 14,049    $ 30,400 

 

Account items  
Category of 
related party  

June 30, 
2025  

December 31, 
2024  

June 30, 
2024 

Interest expense     
Other related party    $ 280    $ 323    $ 385    $ 731 
 

The Group leased the factory of  J ingj ia Elec tronics  Technology (Wuhu) Co.,  
Ltd. in June 2022 for  a  per iod of  three years  at  a  f ixed monthly rental  payment 
based on the lease agreement with  reference to the rental  rate of  s imilar  
assets.  Consequent ly,  the r ight-of -use asset  amounted to 92,848 thousand. 
 
In June 2025, the Group entered into two-year lease agreements with J ing J ia  
Elec tronics and Huadong Technology for p lant bu i ld ings.  The rental  payments,  
determined with reference to prevai l ing market rates for  s imi lar  assets ,  are  
f ixed lease payments  payable monthly in accordance wi th the contracts .  
 
 

(8)  Compensat ion of  key management personnel  
 



The tota l remunerat ion of  d irectors  and other  key management personnel  is  
as fo l lows：  
 

  From April 1 to June 30  
For the Six-Month Period Ended 

June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
Short-term employee 

benefits    $ 1,356    $ 11,901    $ 13,270    $ 23,797 
Postretirement benefits     75     86     150     172 

   $ 1,431    $ 11,987    $ 13,420    $ 23,969 
 

The remunerat ion of  d irectors and other  key management is  determined by 
the Remunerat ion Committee in accordance with individua l  performance and  
market trends,  after  review and approval  by the Board of  Di rec tors .  

 
 

30. PLEDGED ASSETS 
 
The fo l lowing assets have been pledged as col lateral  for borrowings:  

 
  

June 30, 
2025  

December 31, 
2024  

June 30, 
2024 

       
Note receivable    $ -    $ 22,390    $ - 
 
 

31. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS 
 
In addi t ion to those descr ibed in other  notes,  the s ignif icant commitments and 
cont ingenc ies of  the Group as of  the balance sheet  date were as fo l lows:  
 
Signif icant  commitments 

 
(1)  As of  June 30,  2025,  the Group issued promissory notes in the amount of  

NT$1,115,000 thousand to  secure long-  and shor t- term loans.  
 

(2)  As of  June 30,  2025, the Group was issued a let ter  of  guarantee by a bank for 
the per iod f rom February 11, 2025 to February 10,  2026 for  the amount of  
NT$3,000 thousand for import ing goods before taxat ion.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



32. EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY FINANCIAL ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES 

 
The fo l lowing informat ion is  summarized and expressed in foreign currenc ies 
other than the func t iona l currencies of  The Group. The foreign currency assets  
and l iabi l i t ies  with s ign if icant  impact  are as fol lows:  
 

June 30,  2025  

  Foreign currency  Exchange rate  Carrying Amount 
F ina nc ia l  as s e ts       
Monetary items       
USD    $ 4,210   29.30 （USD：NTD）    $ 123,353 
USD     2,737   7.1621 （USD：RMB）     80,195 
JPY     50,674   0.2034 （JPY：NTD）     10,307 
SGD     15   23.00 （SGD：NTD）     345 
EUR     14   34.35 （EUR：NTD）     481 
HKD     40   3.732 （HKD：NTD）     149 
RMB     338   4.091 （RMD：NTD）     1,383 

        $ 216,213 

       
Financial liabilities       
Monetary items       
USD     2,878   29.30 （USD：NTD）    $ 84,325 
USD     3,577   7.1621 （USD：RMB）     104,807 
JPY     18,036   0.0497 （JPY：RMB）     3,669 
EUR     3   34.35 （EUR：NTD）     103 
EUR     45   8.397 （EUR：RMB）     1,546 

        $ 194,450 

 

December 31,  2024  

  Foreign currency  Exchange rate  Carrying Amount 
F ina nc ia l  as s e ts       
Monetary items       
USD    $ 5,568   32.785 （USD：NTD）    $ 182,547 
USD     1,864   7.3213 （USD：RMB）     61,111 
JPY     674   0.2099 （JPY：NTD）     141 
SGD     51   24.13 （SGD：NTD）     1,231 
AUD     46   20.39 （AUD：NTD）     938 
EUR     9   34.14 （EUR：NTD）     307 
HKD     40   4.222 （HKD：NTD）     169 
RMB     380   4.478 （RMD：NTD）     1,702 
        $ 248,146 
       

(Cont inued)



 
  Foreign currency  Exchange rate  Carrying Amount 
Financial liabilities       
Monetary items       
USD    $ 4,188   32.785 （USD：NTD）    $ 137,304 
USD     6,699   7.3213 （USD：RMB）     219,625 
JPY     47,675   0.0469 （JPY：RMB）     10,007 
EUR     1   34.14 （EUR：NTD）     34 
EUR     208   7.6239 （EUR：RMB）     7,101 
RMB     5   4.478 （RMB：NTD）     22 
        $ 374,093 
 

June 30,  2024  

  Foreign currency  Exchange rate  Carrying Amount 
F ina nc ia l  as s e ts       
Monetary items       
USD    $ 4,693   32.45 （USD：NTD）    $ 152,288 
USD     1,937   7.3003 （USD：RMB）     62,855 
JPY     674   0.2017 （JPY：NTD）     136 
EUR     10   34.71 （EUR：NTD）     347 
HKD     40   4.155 （HKD：NTD）     166 
RMB     23   4.445 （RMB：NTD）     102 
        $ 215,894 
       
Financial liabilities       
Monetary items       
USD     2,082   32.45 （USD：NTD）    $ 67,561 
USD     5,487   7.3003 （USD：RMB）     178,052 
JPY     16,983   0.0454 （JPY：RMB）     3,425 
EUR     91   34.71 （EUR：NTD）     3,159 
EUR     143   7.8088 （EUR：RMB）     4,964 
RMB     5   4.445 （RMB：NTD）     22 
        $ 257,183 
 

The Group's fore ign currency exchange gains  ( losses) (real ized and unrea l ized)  
amounted to ($98,033) thousand、 $11,712 thousand、 ($83,475) thousand and 
$24,995 thousand in f rom Apr i l  1 to June 30, 2025 and 2024 and for  the 
s ix-month per iod ended June 30,  2025 and 2024, respec t ively.  Due to the wide 
var iety of  fore ign currency transac t ions and the Group's  ind ividual  func t ional  
currenc ies,  i t  is  not  possible  to d isc lose the exchange ga ins or losses by each 
mater ia l  currency.  
 

 

 

 

 



33. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES 
 

i .  Informat ion about  s ign if icant  transac t ions and investees：  
a.  Financ ings  provided:  (Table 1)  
b.  Act ing as a guarantor  for another party:  None 
c.  Marketable secur it ies held (exc luding investments in subs id iar ies) :  (  Tab le 

2)  
d.  Total  purchases f rom or sa les to re lated par t ies of  at  least  NT$100 mi l l ion  

or 20% of  the paid- in capi ta l :  None 
e.  Receivables from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the 

paid-in capital:  None  
f.  Others: The business relationship between the parent and the subsidiaries and significant 

transactions between them: (Table 5) 
  

i i .  Informat ion on inves tees:  (Table 3)  
 

i i i .  Informat ion on investment in mainland China 
 

a.  The name of  the inves tee in mainland China,  the main bus inesses  and 
products , i ts  issued cap ital ,  method of  inves tment, informat ion on inf low 
or outf low of  capi ta l ,  percentage of  ownership, income ( losses)  of  the 
investee,  share of  prof i ts / losses  of  investee, end ing balance, amount 
received as div idends f rom the investee, and the l im itat ion on inves tee.  
(Table 4)  
 

b.  Any of  the fo l lowing s ign if icant  t ransact ions  with investee companies in 
mainland China,  e ither d irec t ly or  indirec t ly through a th ird par ty,  and 
their  pr ices,  payment  terms, and unrea l ized gains or  losses.  (Table  6)  
 (1)  The amount  and percentage of  purchases and the balance and 

percentage of  the re lated payables at  the end of  the year  
 (2)  The amount and percentage of  sales and the balance and 

percentage of  the re lated rece ivables at  the end of  the year  
 (3)  The amount of  property t ransact ions and the amount of  the 

resul tant  gains or  losses 
 (4)  The balance of  negotiable instrument endorsements or  guarantees 

or p ledges of  co l lateral  at  the end of  the year and the purposes  
 (5)  The highest  balance,  the end ing balance, the interes t ra te range,  

and tota l  current  per iod interest  wi th respect  to the f inanc ing of  
funds 

 (6)  Other  t ransact ions that have a  mater ia l  effec t on the prof i t  or  loss 
for the year or  on the f inanc ia l pos it ion, such as the render ing or  
receipt  of  serv ices 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



34. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
Informat ion repor ted to the ch ief  operat ing dec is ion maker for  the purpose of  
resource al locat ion and assessment of  segment per formance focuses on the 
types of  goods or  services del ivered or  provided.  
PCBA － EMS1 
    － EMS3 

 
 (1)  Segment revenue and resul ts  

 
The fo l lowing was an analys is of  the Group’s revenue and resul ts f rom 

cont inuing operat ions by repor table segments:  
  Operating revenue  Profit (loss) from operations 
  For the Six-Month Period Ended June 30 
  2025  2024  2025  2024 
PCBA －EMS1    $ 177,126    $ 152,878   ( $ 12,882 )   ( $ 1,610 ) 
  －EMS3     3,106,788     2,716,684     85,923     221,627 
Adjustments   (  8,249 )   (  31 )   (  45 )   (  16,945 ) 
Profit from operations    $ 3,275,665    $ 2,869,531     72,996     203,072 
Interest income         18,337     11,978 
Dividend income         12,464     - 
Gain (Loss)on disposal of 

property, plant and 
equipment         315   (  706 ) 

Foreign exchange (loss) 
gain       (  83,475 )     24,995 

Rental income         416     438 
Share of profit of 

associates       (  155 )   (  107 ) 
Financial instrument 

evaluation benefits         49     39 
Financial costs       (  22,545 )   (  24,456 ) 
Other income         17,440     21,879 
Profit before Income tax 

from  continue 
operations        $ 15,842    $ 237,132 

 

The revenue repor ted above was generated f rom transact ions  with  external  
c l ients .  For  the Six-month per iod ended June 30,  2025 and 2024 do not  
include any intersegment sa les.   
 
Segment in terests refer  to the prof i ts earned by each depar tment ,  exc lud ing 
interest  income, disposi t ion of  real  estate,  p lant  and equ ipment  gains and 
losses , net  ga ins ( losses) f rom fore ign currency exchange, rental  income,  
gain on reversa l  of  impairment  loss , gain on reversa l  of  a l lowance, f inanc ia l  
instrument eva luat ion gains and losses, f inanc ia l  costs, other income and 
income tax expense.  This measure is provided to  the chief  operat ing dec is ion 
maker to a l locate resources  to  segments  and measure the ir  per formance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 (2)  Total segmental  assets and l iabi l i t ies  
 

  
June 30, 

2025  
December 31, 

2024  
June 30, 

2024 
Segment assets       

Continuing Operations 
Segment       

  EMS1    $ 932,120    $ 877,288    $ 866,167 

  EMS3     5,915,265     7,221,362     5,630,011 

Segment assets     6,847,385     8,098,650     6,496,178 

Unallocated assets     61,377     46,222     38,651 

Total assets    $ 6,908,762    $ 8,144,872    $ 6,534,829 
       

Segment liabilities       
Continuing Operations 

Segment       
  EMS1    $ 145,100    $ 214,601    $ 135,526 
  EMS3     2,656,896     3,543,768     2,459,538 

Segment liabilities     2,801,996     3,578,369     2,595,064 

Unallocated liabilities     944,860     844,555     652,039 

Total liabilities    $ 3,746,856    $ 4,602,924    $ 3,247,103 
 

Based on the purpose of  monitor ing departmenta l performance and a l locat ing 
resources to each department:  
 

a.  Al l  assets other than deferred tax assets are  a l located to repor tab le  
segments.  Assets  used jo int ly by repor table departments are 
apport ioned on the basis  of  income earned by the respect ive  reportable  
departments;  and 
 

b.  Al l  l iabi l i t ies  other  than borrowings and current  and deferred income tax 
l iabi l i t ies are  a l located to repor table segments.  L iabi l i t ies jo int ly borne 
by reportable  depar tments are  apport ioned in propor t ion to  departmental  
assets  

 

 

 



TABLE 1 
INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
FINANCING PROVIDED TO OTHERS 
JUNE 30, 2025 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)                                                                                                                                                        

 

No. Lender Borrower 
Financial 
Statement 
Account 

Related 
Party 

Highest 
Balance for  
the Period 

Ending 
Balance 

（Note 6） 

Actual 
Borrowing 
Amount 

Interest Rate 
(%) 

Nature of 
Financing 

Reasons for 
Short-term 
Financing 

Allowance for 
Impairment 

Loss 

Collateral Financing Limit 
for Each 
Borrower 
（Note 4） 

Aggregate 
Financing Limit
（Note 5） Item Value 

1 SUN RISE 
CORPORATION
（Note 1） 

Info-Tek Electronics 
(Suzhou) CO.,LTD. 
（Note 2） 

Other receivables 
due from related 
parties 

Y   $ 228,650 
 ( RMB 50,000 ) 

  $ 204,550 
 ( RMB 50,000 ) 

 $ 204,550 
 ( RMB 50,000 ) 

2.7% Note 3 Operating 
turnover 

  $ - - -   $ 1,264,762   $ 1,264,762 

 
Note1：  Equity-method investees。  
 
Note2：  The Company is  an equity-method investee of  SUN RISE CORPORATION. 
 
Note3：  There is  a need for short - term f inanc ing.  
 
Note4： The lending l im it  to indiv idual  customers or fore ign companies in which the Company direct ly or  indirect ly holds 100% of  the vot ing shares shal l  not exceed 40% of  the Company's latest aud i ted 

or reviewed net f inanc ial  statements in  Taiwan.  
 
Note5： The tota l  amount of  the capital  loan shal l  not  exceed 40% of  the net value of  the Company's most recent  f inanc ial  s tatements . 
 
Note6： The c los ing balance was trans lated at the exchange rate of  RMB1=4.091 as of  June 30,  2025.  

 



     TABLE 2 
INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD 
JUNE 30, 2025 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)                                                                                                                                                        

Holding Company 
Name 

Type of 
Marketable 
Securities 

Name of Marketable Securities 
Relationship with 

the Holding 
Company 

Financial Statement Account 
JUNE 30, 2025  

Note Number of 
Shares 

Carrying Amount 
Percentage of 

Ownership 
(%) 

Fair Value 

Info-Tek Corporation Common Stock Walsin Technology Corporation Associate Financial assets at FVTOCI    316,521   $ 25,733   -   $25,733  

“ Common Stock TXC CORPORATION N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 2,397,000   205,663   -    205,663  

“ Subordinate Bonds Cathay Life Insurance Company, Ltd. N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 2,000,000    58,312   -    58,312  

“ Corporate Bonds APPLE INC. N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 1,040,000    30,358   -    30,358  

          “ Government Bonds U.S. TREASURY NOTE N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 1,000,000    29,069   -    29,069  

SUN RISE 
CORPORATION 

Money Market 
Funds 

MS USD LIQUID QUALIF ACC FUND N/A Financial assets at FVTPL-current  1,152.42     4,134   -     4,134  

“ Corporate Bonds BPCE SA N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 1,200,000    34,197   -    34,197  

 Corporate Bonds PETRONAS Capital Limited N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 1,940,000    54,576   -    54,576  

 Corporate Bonds Credit Suisse AG New York Branch N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 2,800,000    88,498   -    88,498  

 Corporate Bonds 3M Company N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 2,500,000    67,931   -    67,931  

 Corporate Bonds Toyota Motor Credit Corporation N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 2,100,000    63,268   -    63,268  

 Corporate Bonds NEXUS INTERNATIONAL 
SCHOOL 

N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI   966,667    22,396   -    22,396  

 Corporate Bonds TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 3,040,000    58,893  -    58,893  

 Corporate Bonds MITSUBISHI CORP. N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI   230,000     6,860   -     6,860  

“ Corporate Bonds Banco Santander, S.A. N/A Financial assets at FVTOCI 1,000,000    30,394   -    30,394  

Note1： Marketab le secur it ies referred to in th is tab le are s tocks,  bonds , benef ic iary cer t i f ica tes  and marketable secur i t ies  der ived f rom the above i tems that  fa l l  wi thin the scope of  IFRS 9,  "F inanc ial  
Ins truments".  

 
Note2： I f  the issuer  of  marketab le secur it ies  is  not a re lated par ty,  the column is not  required to be f i l led  in.  
 
Note3： For  those who are not measured at  fa ir  value,  p lease enter  the carrying amount of  amort ized cos t (net  of  a l lowance for  losses)  in co lumn B. For  those who are not  measured at  fa ir  value, p lease 

enter the carrying amount of  amort ized cost  (net of  a l lowance for  losses) in column B. 
 
Note4： Please refer  to  Table 3 and Table 4  for the investment  subsidiar ies.  



TABLE 3 
INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
INFORMATION ON INVESTEES 
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)                                                                                                                                                           

 

Investor Company Investee Company 
 

Location 
 

Main Businesses 
and Products 

Original Investment Amount As of June 30, 2025 Net Income (Loss) 
of the 

Investee 

Share of Profit 
(Loss)（Note1） Note June 30, 

2025 
December 31, 

2024 
Number of 

Shares （％） Carrying 
Amount 

Info-Tek Corporation INFO-TEK HOLDING 
CO., LTD. 

British Virgin 
Islands 

Trade industry   $ 110,726   $ 110,726    3,700,000    100   $ 216,936   $ 5,462   $ 5,462 Investments 
accounted for 
using equity 
method 

 SUN RISE 
CORPORATION 

Samoa Investment industry    1,167,689 
 

   1,167,689 
 

   35,500,000    100    3,137,194    35,311 
 

   35,311 
 

〃 

 Walsin New Engery 
Corporation 

Taiwan Solar energy 
generation 

   2,500    2,500 
 

   250,000    5    2,100  (  3,099 )  (  155 ) 〃 

SUN RISE 
CORPORATION 

Info-Tek Electronics 
(Suzhou) CO.,LTD. 

Jiangsu,China Manufacture and 
assembly of 
motherboards for 
information 
electronic products 

 

   1,142,037 
 

   1,142,037 
 

Table 4    92.21    2,488,330    93,993    86,669 〃 

INFO-TEK HOLDING 
CO., LTD. 

Info-Tek Electronics 
(Suzhou) CO.,LTD. 

Jiangsu,China Manufacture and 
assembly of 
motherboards for 
information 
electronic products 

 

   91,525    91,525 Table 4    7.79    210,281    93,993    7,324 〃 

            
 

Note1： The ca lcu lat ion is  based on the investees'  rev iewed f inanc ial  statements  as of  June 30, 2024, based on the percentage of  sharehold ing.  
 
Note2： Please refer  to  Table 4 for  informat ion on our  Mainland China investee companies.。  



TABLE 4 
INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS IN MAINLAND CHINA 
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)                                                                                                                                                            

 

Investee Company Main Businesses 
and Products Paid-in Capital Method of 

Investment 

Accumulated 
Outward 

Remittance for 
Investment from 

Taiwan as of  
January 1, 2025 

Remittance of Funds Accumulated 
Outward 

Remittance for 
Investment from 

Taiwan as of  
June 30, 2025
（Note3） 

Net Income (Loss) 
of the Investee 
（Note2） 

 
%  

Ownership of 
Direct or 
Indirect 

Investment 

 
Investment Gain 
(Loss) (Note 2) 

 
Carrying Amount 

as of June 30, 
2025(Note 2) 

Accumulated 
Appropriation of 

Investment 
Income as of June 

30, 2025 Outward Inward 

Info-Tek Electronics 
(Suzhou) CO.,LTD. 

Manufacture and 
assembly of 
motherboards for 
information 
electronic products 

  $ 1,233,562 （Note1）   $ 1,233,562   $ -   $ -   $ 1,233,562   $ 93,993 100%   $ 93,993   $ 2,698,611   $ 767,445 

             
 

Accumulated Outward Remittance for 
Investments in Mainland China as of 

June 30, 2025 
（Note3） 

Investment Amount Authorized by the 
Investment Commission, MOEA 

（Note 4） 

Upper Limit on the Amount of Investments 
Stipulated by the Investment Commission, 

MOEA 

  $ 1,617,552 
 ( USD 50,509,323.8 ) 

  $ 1,617,552 
 ( USD 50,509,323.8 ) 

  $ 1,897,144 
（Note4） 

 
Note 1:  Investment in mainland China companies through an ex is t ing company establ ished in a th ird region.  
 
Note 2:  Based on the f inanc ial  statements of  the investee company reviewed by the attest ing CPA of  the Taiwan parent  company.  
 
Note 3:  The convers ion rate  is  based on the prevai l ing exchange rate of  each investment.  
 
Note 4:  The Company was cer t i f ied by the Industr ia l  Deve lopment Bureau of  the Minis t ry of  Economic  Affa irs as being in compliance wi th the scope of  operat ion of  the operat ing headquarters , which 

exp ired in June 2021, and no further  amounts were remitted.  

 



TABLE 5 
INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT INTERCOMPANY TRANSACTIONS 
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 
(Amounts In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)                                                                                                                                                                   

 

No. 
（Note 1） Investee Company Counterparty Relationship 

（Note 2） 
Transaction Details 

Financial Statement Accounts Amount Payment Terms % of Total Sales or 
Assets（Note 3） 

0 Info-Tek Corporat ion  Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. 1 Sales   $ 3,206 No significant difference with 
non-related parties     

  Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. 1 Cost of goods sold    5,043 〃     
  Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. 1 Trade receivables from related parties    2,932 〃  
  Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. 1 Trade payables to related parties    4,983 〃     

1 Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO.,LTD. Info-Tek Corporat ion  2 Cost of goods sold    3,206 〃     
  Info-Tek Corporat ion  2 Sales    5,043 〃     
  Info-Tek Corporat ion  2 Trade receivables from related parties    4,983 〃     
  Info-Tek Corporat ion  2 Trade payables to related parties    2,932 〃  
  INFO-TEK HOLDING CO., LTD. 3 Other payables from related parties    777 〃     
  SUNRISE CORPORATION 3 Other payables from related parties    205,194 〃    2.97% 
  SUNRISE CORPORATION 3 Finance costs    2,804 〃     

2 INFO-TEK HOLDING CO., LTD. Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. 3 Other receivables from related parties    777 〃     
3 SUNRISE CORPORATION Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. 3 Interest income    2,804 〃     
  Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO., LTD. 3 Other receivables from related parties    205,194 〃    2.97% 
        

 

Note 1:  Informat ion regarding bus iness transact ions between the parent  company and its  subs id iar ies  should  be indicated separately in the "Code" column. The coding method is  as fol lows:  

(1)  Enter 0 for the parent company.  

(2)  Subs id iar ies should be numbered sequent ia l ly s tar t ing f rom 1,  us ing Arabic  numerals,  based on the respect ive  company.  

 

Note 2:  The re lat ionship is c lass if ied in 3 categor ies:  
1:  Represents for  the t ransact ion f rom parent  company to  subsid iary;  
2:  Represents for  the t ransact ion f rom subs id iary to  parent  company;   
3:  Represents for  the t ransact ions between subsid iar ies.  

 
Note 3:  The percentage of  tota l  assets  is  ca lcu lated us ing the ending balance divided by the tota l  consol idated assets ;  the percentage of  tota l revenue is  ca lcu lated us ing the accumulated amount  

dur ing the per iod div ided by the total  conso l idated sa les revenue.  
 

Note 4:  The disclosure of  s igni f icant  intercompany transac t ions in th is  table may be determ ined by the company based on the pr inc iple of  mater ia l i t y.  

 



INFO-TEK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
The following significant transactions with Mainland China investees, directly or indirectly through third parties, and their prices, payment terms, unrealized gains or losses, and other related informa
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)                                                                                                                                                 

 

Company Name Purchase/ (Sale) Amount Price 
Payment terms

Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO.,LTD. Sale   $ 3,206 Market Price Payment Term 90 Days

Info-Tek Electronics (Suzhou) CO.,LTD. Purchase    5,043 Market Price Payment Term 90 Days

 

 


